
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (1) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 5th July, 2018 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Angela Harvey (Chairman) 
Susie Burbridge 
Aicha Less 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda. 
 
Admission to the public gallery is via a visitor’s pass which 
is available from the main ground floor reception at 5 Strand 
from 9.30am.  If you have a disability and require any special 
assistance please contact the Committee Officer (details 
listed below) in advance of the meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Kisi Smith-Charlemagne, Senior Committee and 
Governance Officer. 
 
Email: kscharlemagne@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 
2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal or 
prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   2 OLD COMPTON STREET, LONDON, W1D 4TA  

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

1. West End 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Compton 

Cross, 2 

Old 

Compton 

Street, 

London, 

W1D 4TA 
 

New 

Premises 

Licence  

18/03718/L

IPN 

 

 

2.   CO-OPERATIVE, BAKER STREET,  LONDON, NW1 5RT (Pages 1 - 
86) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

 



 
 

 

2. Regent’s 

Park Ward 

/ not in 

cumulative 

impact 

area 

Co-

operative, 

Baker 

Street,  

London, 

NW1 5RT 

New 

Premises 

Licence  

18/03285/L

IPN 

 

3.   26 SOUTHAMPTON STREET, LONDON, WC2E 7JA (Pages 87 - 
112) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

3. St James’s 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

26 

Southampt

on Street 

London 

WC2E 7JA 

New 

Premises 

Licence  

18/04918/L

IPN 

 

 

4.   CAFÉ FIORI, 42 CRANBOURN STREET, LONDON, WC2H 7JH (Pages 113 - 
134) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

4. St James’s 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Café Fiori 

42 

Cranbourn 

Street 

London 

WC2H 7JH 

Premises 

Licence 

Variation  

18/03438/L

IPV 

 

 

5.   WOODS QUAY, SAVOY PIER, VICTORIA EMBANKMENT, 
LONDON, SW1A 2HR 

(Pages 135 - 
154) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Site Name 

and 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

 



 
 

 

Impact 

Area 

Address Number 

5. St James’s 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area 

Woods 

Quay 

Savoy Pier 

Victoria 

Embankme

nt 

London 

SW1A 

2HR 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

18/05005/L

IPN 

 

6.   RULES RESTAURANT, 34-35 MAIDEN LANE, LONDON, WC2E 
7LB 

(Pages 155 - 
186) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

6. St James’s 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Rules 

Restaurant 

34-35 

Maiden 

Lane 

London 

WC2E 7LB 

Premises 

Licence 

Variation 

18/04360/L

IPV 

 

 

7.   ROSE BAKERY, 18 - 21 HAYMARKET, LONDON, SW1Y 4DQ (Pages 187 - 
206) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area 

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

7. St James’s 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Rose 

Bakery 

18 - 21 

Haymarket 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

18/05160/L

IPN 

 



 
 

 

Area London 

SW1Y 

4DQ 
 

 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
29 June 2018 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2016, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The City of Westminster statement of licensing policy applies to all applications where 
relevant representations have been made. The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to 
have regard to the City of Westminster statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance 
issued by the Secretary of state under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2016. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2016. 
 
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5 July 2018 

   

Licensing Ref No:  18/03285/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Co-operative,  
190-192 Baker Street 
London 
NW1 5RT 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  Regent's Park 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 2



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 26 March 2018 

Applicant: Co-operative Group Food Limited 

Premises: Co-operative 

Premises address: 190 Baker Street 
London 
NW1 5RT 
 

Ward: 
 

Regent’s Park. 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None.  

Premises description: 
 

According to the application, the premises will operate as a 
convenience store.  
 

Premises licence history: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence and therefore 
no history exist. 
  

Applicant submissions: See Appendix 2. 
 
Late submissions were received on 28th June 2018.  It is 
unclear what conditions they replace.  A copy of the schedule 
of conditions proposed can also be found in Appendix 2. 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Off Sales  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable. 

page 2



 

 
 
 
 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible Authority: Environmental Health Service 
 

Representative:  Mrs Sally Fabbricatore  
 

Received:  
 

6th April 2018 

  
This representation is based on the Operating Schedule and the ground floor plan of the 
premises, which is titled with the address.   
 
The applicant is seeking the following on the ground floor: 
  

1. To allow the Supply of Alcohol ‘off’ the premises Monday to Sunday 06:00-00:00 hours.   
 

2. To allow the provision of Late Night Refreshment ‘indoors’ Monday to Sunday 23:00-
00:00 hours.  

 
I wish to make the following representation in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The provision of the Supply of Alcohol may cause an increase in Public Nuisance in the 
area.  
 

2. The provision of Late Night Refreshment may cause an increase in Public Nuisance in 
the area.  

 
The applicant has proposed conditions within the operating schedule which are being 
considered.  Further conditions may be proposed by Environmental Health in order to help 
prevent Public Nuisance.   
 
The granting of the new Premises Licence as presented would have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area.  
 
 
Further Comments/proposed conditions: 
 
 

1. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 
and shall not be consumed on the premises. 

 
2. No more than 15 % of the sales area to be used at any one time for the sale, exposure 

for sale, or display of alcohol. 
 

3. No super-strength beer, lagers or ciders of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or above shall 
be sold at the premises except for premium beers, lagers or ciders, sold in glass bottles. 
 

4. There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises except for spirit mixtures below 
5.5% Alcohol by Volume. 
 

page 3



5. Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be 
displayed so as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on public 
display, and at the point of sale. 
 

6. Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol and whilst the premises are open 
to the public, the licence holder shall ensure that all alcohol within the premises 
(including alcohol behind the counter) is secured in a locked store room or behind locked 
grilles, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent access to the alcohol by 
both customers and staff.  

 
7. A challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 
 

8. All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when 
presented with an alcohol sale. 
 

9. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include the date 
and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. 
The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised 
officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open. 
 

10. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  
 

11. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 
minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 

12. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed in 
outside areas between 23.00 hours and 07.00 hours. 
 

13. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 
 

14. The Licence will have no effect until the premises have been assessed as satisfactory by 
the Environmental Health Consultation Team and this condition has been removed from 
the Licence. 

 

Responsible Authority: Metropolitan Police Service  
 

Representative: PC Reaz Guerra  
 

Received: 
 

11th April 2018  

 
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a Responsible Authority, will be 
objecting to this application as it is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Protection of children from harm objectives.  
 
The hours sought exceed Westminster’s Core Hours Policy. 
 
There is insufficient detail within the operating schedule to promote the Licensing Objectives. 
 

page 4



An officer from this unit will be in contact with you shortly to discuss the application. However it 
is for the applicant to prove that this application will not add to the problems already 
experienced in this area. 
 
It is for these reasons that we are objecting to the application. 
 
Additional comments/proposed conditions:  
 
The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All till points and all entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable 
activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be 
stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings 
shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period.  
 
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be 
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data 
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  
 
All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, and 
shall not be consumed on the premises.  
 
Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol and whilst the premises are open to the 
public, the licence holder shall ensure that all alcohol within the premises (including alcohol 
behind the counter) is secured in a locked store room or behind locked grilles, locked screens 
or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent access to the alcohol by both customers and staff.  
 
All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when presented 
with an alcohol sale.  
 
 
No super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by volume) or 
above shall be sold at the premises, except for premium beers and ciders supplied in glass 
bottles.  

 
No single cans or bottles of beer or cider or spirit mixtures shall be sold at the premises.  
 
No more than (15)% of the sales area shall be used at any one time for the sale, exposure 
for sale, or display of alcohol.  
 
There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less than 
5.5% ABV. 
  
Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be displayed so 
as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on public display, and at the 
point of sale.  
 
All cashiers will receive refresher training on relevant alcohol laws and the licence holder’s 
policy on challenging for ID. Such training to take place at least twice a year. Records will be 
maintained at the premises containing information about the training of any person who may 
make a sale of alcohol including the date of their training and the nature of the training 
undertaken.  The relevant documentation shall be produced on request to a police officer or 
a relevant officer of a responsible authority. 

 

page 5



The licence holder shall ensure that all cashiers are trained to ask any customer attempting 
to purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years (or older if the licence 
holder so elects) for evidence of age.  This evidence shall be photographic, such as passport 
or photographic driving licence until other effective identification technology (for example, 
thumb print or pupil recognition) is introduced. All cashiers will be instructed, through training, 
that a sale shall not be made unless this evidence is produced. 
 
An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of 
the incident and will record the following:  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) any faults in the CCTV system  
(f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
Prior to any "designated sporting event" (as defined in the Sporting Events Control of Alcohol 
Act 1985) the premises licence holder shall ensure that;  

(i) Alcohol sales in respect of cans of beer or cider are limited to no more than 4 cans 
per person for a minimum of four hours before the commencement of the relevant 
designated sporting event;  

(ii) No sales of alcohol in bottles or glass containers are made in the period four hours 
before the commencement of the designated sporting event;  

(iii) Alcohol sales cease for a period of one hour immediately before the commencement 
of the relevant designated sporting event;  

(iv) On any day where there is a relevant designated sporting event taking place, the 
premises will not externally advertise as a result of a local store promotion the 
availability of beer or cider in such a way as to be likely to be the sole inducement 
to attract persons to the premises who are either attending the designated 
sporting event or in the vicinity of the premises as a result of the designated 
sporting event;  

(v) All members of staff working at the premises are informed of this condition prior to 
taking up employment;  

(vi) On the day of the relevant designated sporting event, upon the direction of a police 
officer, using the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder or public safety, 
the premises will immediately cease to sell alcohol until further directed by the 
police or until the relevant designated sporting event has finished.  
 

As soon as possible, and in any event within 1 month from the grant of this licence, the 
premises shall join the local Pubwatch or other local crime reduction scheme approved by 
the police, and local radio scheme if available.  
 

 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Received:  
 

12th April 2018  

No sale of alcohol on Wembley football match days as per existing control of Paper Shop(in 
Baker Street) and closure of Witherspoon Metropolitan Bar: Licence should be in line with those 
premises already in the area store should be fitted with lockable refrigeration units. 
 
Comments by Chiltern Court Residents 
 
1.   Our residents are concerned that the application does not promote the four license 

objectives of crime and disorder, Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the protection of 
children from harm. 

page 6



 
2.   We also object to any license being granted to this location. Our experience of existing 

levels of drunk and disorderly conduct, nuisance and concern for our children and 
elderly residents should not be added to. 

 
3.   Football supporters arriving in Baker Street on Wembley match days already in an 

intoxicated state should not be provided with yet another source of alcohol and 
additional litter material. 

 
4.   We fear the prospect of the operating hours of the CO-OP leading to a huge increase in 

our noise and disturbance levels and the day to day delivery noise levels. 
 
5.   We plead with the licensing committee to confer with the Police regarding existing 

extreme levels of policing and the difficulties in exercising control. We would point out 
that certain station entrances are already closed on match days. 

 
6.   Representatives of the Board of Directors of Chiltern Court have an appointment with 

executives of Transport for London to outline our concerns and submit details of the 
experience of our building staff. We offer the attendance of said staff at your hearing 
whenever the date is established. 

 
7.   One final concern is the potential interference with the London Fire Brigade Dry Riser 

located in the doorway of the Chiltern Court main entrance. 
 

Received:  
 

8th April 2018  

There is no shortage of outlets selling alcohol on and around Baker Street. An additional outlet 
is therefore unnecessary. It will contribute further to litter and vagrancy on Baker Street and 
provides additional risks to those of us who live here. Limiting the hours of sale of alcohol may 
be a compromise WCC should seek. WCC is already upgrading Baker Street; the Co-Op should 
therefore demonstrate how it is contributing to a better quality environment in light of this. With 
the frequent influx of football supporters prior to matches at Wembley, making more alcohol 
sales available does not seem sensible or socially responsible for this part of Baker Street.  
 
WCC should also show greater commitment to retail diversity in this section of Baker Street 
which is now dominated by food and drink outlets, which in turn negatively affect the character 
of one of London's great thoroughfares. 
 

 Name: St Marylebone Society 

Received:  
 

17th April 2018  

(Co-op convenience store in Baker Street Station: As local residents, many of our members 
would prefer the emphasis of the store to be on groceries rather than convenience foods).  
 
Street drinkers:  
 
There are intermittent problems with street drinkers in the area of Marylebone Station and Baker 
Street Station, and there are almost always problems with beggars in the vicinity of both stations 
and food store chains such as Tesco.  
 
In recent years, these problems have been somewhat alleviated by the actions of the baker 
Street Quarter, but the problem requires permanent ongoing action, as these individuals or 
others return to the same spots after a while.  
 
Match Days at Wembley:  
 

page 7



We know that police ask some shops to close for some matches when they there might be 
drink-fuelled trouble between fans of rival teams. There are often quite substantial numbers of 
fans drinking at the Globe pub, etc on these days, and there have been instances of rival groups 
hurling missiles at each other across the Marylebone Road. This outlet will also need to be 
evaluated in terms of increased nuisance on these days. 
 
Licensing Hours and cheap alcohol 
 
In our view, if a licence to sell alcohol is granted, the co-op should not be selling cheap, high 
alcohol drink which will inevitably be bought by individuals who have a dependency/ may cause 
a nuisance locally.  
 
This area is heavily residential, which means that residents are already subject to quite a lot of 
noise. Late night sales of alcohol from this outlet are likely to cause some increase in late night 
noise and nuisance, so we ask that the licensing committee consider restricting the proposed 
hours of sale.  
 
Tesco Express at 11-15 Melcombe St, is permitted to sell alcohol 8am - 11 pm M-Sat, and 
10am-10.30pm Sun. 
 
Why would a new convenience store in Baker Street be permitted much longer hours than a 
similar nearby local food shop? OBJECTION. 
 

Received:  
 

20th April 2018  

 
We wish to register our strong objection to the new premises licence application submitted by 
the Co-operative for 190-192 Baker Street, We specifically have concerns regarding all four of 
the licensing objectives relating to Crime & Disorder, Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the 
protection of Children from harm. 
 
Having read the on-line licensing application and its apparent lack of awareness regarding the 
Westminster Licensing policy guidelines, knowing well the issues surrounding the sale of alcohol 
in the immediate locality and being aware of the new Baker Street road configuration due to 
become operational early next year when it becomes a two way street rather than the existing 
one way system we have grave concerns regarding a deterioration of the area should this 
licence application be permitted. 
 
1.The first concern we raise is that of crime & disorder in the form of public drunkenness, 
potential under-age drinking and other low level disorder which together exacerbate other issues 
already experienced in the locale such as begging. Clearly there are numbers of street drinkers 
who are active in this locality many of whom live/sleep on the streets and a further alcohol outlet 
from a national company that so blatantly fails to consult, address or recognise existing 
problems is most unlikely to ensure sufficient & adequate measures are adopted to prevent an 
escalation of this most difficult of local issues. 
 
2.No shop plan was published so we are unable to assess the location of the proposed alcohol 
displays or review the types of alcohol intended to be stocked in relation to the anticipated large 
customer flows presumably entering the store from the direction of the Baker Street station 
lobby and indeed from Baker Street itself. 
 
3.We also wonder how the business will be controlled and operated especially relating to alcohol 
sales during the extended trading periods applied for as scant details have been provided. 
 
The security aspects of managing large groups of customers in relatively confined spaces alone 
will be extremely difficult to control and will undoubtedly lead to the wholesale theft of alcohol 
much of it ending up in the hands of the under-age which then fails to promote the licensing 

page 8



objective of the protection of children from harm as well as the aforementioned street drinkers 
thereby all adding to existing problems. 
 
The proximity of Madame Tussauds and other nearby popular tourist venues will attract many 
UK and other foreign tourists the majority being underage children often visiting as members of 
large groups where constant supervision is not always possible therefore a busy shop provides 
ample opportunities for the illegal acquisition of alcohol. 
 
4.We have severe concerns over the public health & safety aspect as well as the noise 
pollution/nuisance created by deliveries to the Co-op. We understand that the loading/unloading 
bay for the store is located over a 100 metres away, The application contains no details relating 
to the mechanics of delivery so we are forced to make assumptions as to the methods 
employed. Normally in common with other similar retailers the co-op stock replenishment 
deliveries are via metal cages on wheels which are either left at the shop and the empties are 
collected from the previous delivery or they are emptied as they are delivered to the store by 
staff. We assume it is the former of the two options but the issues are the same for both. 
 
This will mean a constant stream of metal cages rolling along the pavement which for residents, 
shop-keepers and the public represent significant dangers and noise pollution (the noise from a 
heavy metal cage rolling along a pavement is substantial and from multiple cages over a length 
of time would be intolerable) especially on such crowded pavements (even if they are widened).  
 
The chance of a cage toppling is very real and could injure passers-by or alternatively possibly 
spill into the street and cause a vehicle accident and/or traffic congestion. 
We further understand that it is proposed to sink a lift shaft (the day to day operation itself would 
cause significant noise and vibration) from the pavement area down to the basement levels of 
the premises rather than directly into the store. Clearly only one cage at a time can be moved 
which suggests that either there will be a batch of cages awaiting disposal on the street or that 
only one cage at a time will be trundled along Baker Street which will significantly prolong the 
delivery cycle. We have no idea how many times a week or day will deliveries be made, 
presumably the busier the store the more cages or deliveries there will be. No details of delivery 
times were indicated on the application however we say that deliveries during normal night-time 
hours would disturb residents and cause significant loss of sleep whilst during the day it would 
be bad for all visitors, residents, businesses and road users. 
 
5.We see no evidence that any kind of consultation with the relevant responsible authorities has 
taken place and therefore have little confidence in the ability of the company to deal with such a 
high profile location. The lack of robustness within the operating schedule shows no 
understanding regarding the problems this store will face and it appears the Co-op believe, if we 
are to read the operating schedule carefully, the issues will be consistent with a location inside a 
mid-band residential housing estate or secondary High street, where many of their stores are 
currently located. 
 
6.The station is a major transport hub for locations further afield with exceptionally large 
numbers of people using the area as stop-over before moving on. We see no evidence of how 
the co-op will manage this major concern or even whether the Co-op is aware of its special 
significance. 
 
We urge the committee to refuse this application as this firm like the Tesco's before them are 
only interested in obtaining a prestige site without committing themselves to the equally 
important responsibilities that come hand in hand. 
 

page 9



 
  
3. Policy & Guidance 

 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies  (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies.  

 

Policy OS1 applies: 

 

Applications will generally be granted and reviews determined 
subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 CH1 and 
HRS1 and other policies in this Statement. 

 

Policy FFP1 applies: 

 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that the 
proposal meets relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and 
CH1. 

 

 

page 10



 
4. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Application Form  26th March 2018 

5 Representation – MET Police Service           11th April 2018  

6 Representation – Environmental Health Service  6th April 2018 

7 Representation  12th April 2018  

8 Representation  8th April 2018 

9 Representation  17th April 2018 

10 Representation  20th April 2018  

 
 

page 11



 
         Appendix 1 

Premises Plans 
 

 

page 12



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 

  
 

  

page 13



page 14



page 15



page 16



page 17



page 18



page 19



page 20



page 21



page 22



page 23



page 24



page 25



page 26



page 27



page 28



page 29



page 30



page 31



page 32



page 33



page 34



page 35



page 36



page 37



page 38



page 39



page 40



page 41



page 42



page 43



page 44



page 45



page 46



page 47



page 48



page 49



page 50



page 51



page 52



page 53



page 54



page 55



page 56



page 57



page 58



page 59



page 60



page 61



page 62



page 63



page 64



page 65



page 66



page 67



page 68



page 69



page 70



page 71



page 72



page 73



page 74



page 75



         Appendix 3 
Premises History 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 

page 76



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
5. (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted 
price. 

 
(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 5(i) above - 

 
(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 

Act 1979; 

page 77



 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the 
sale or supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
 

(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above would (apart from 
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 5(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 5(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
6. The premises shall maintain a CCTV system which gives coverage of all entry and exit 

points. The system shall continually record whilst the premises are open and conducting 
licensable activities. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 28 days and 
shall be capable of being easily downloaded. Recordings shall be made available upon 
receipt of a request by an authorised Officer of the Police or the Licensing Authority.  

 
 Alternate condition proposed by the Police: 
 
 The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All till points and all 

page 78



entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the 
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on 
the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the 
request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
7. There shall be CCTTV in Operation signs prominently displayed at the premises.  
 
8. An incident log (whether kept in a written or electronic form) shall be retained at the 

premises and made available to an authorised officer of the Police or Local Authority.  
9. The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme, such as a Challenge 25, whereby 

the only forms acceptable identification shall be either a photographic driving licence, a 
valid passport, military identification or any other recognised form of photographic 
identification incorporating the PASS Logo, or any other form of identification from tie to 
time approved by the secretary of the state.  

 
 Alternate condition proposed by the Police: 
 
 An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 
hours of the incident and will record the following:  

 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue  
(b)  all ejections of patrons  
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d)  any incidents of disorder  
(e)  any faults in the CCTV system  
(f)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(g)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
 
10. The premises will be fitted with a burglar alarm system.  
 
11. The premises will be fitted with a panic button system for staff to utilise in the case of an 

emergency.  
 
12. The premises licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate fire safety, and health and 

safety regulations are applied at the premises.  
 
13. A complain procedure will be maintained, details of which will be made available in store 

and upon request.  
 
14. All staff to receive comprehensive training in relation to age restricted products and in 

particular the sale of alcohol. No member of staff will be permitted to sell age restricted 
products until such time as they have successfully completed the aforementioned 
training.  

 
 Alternate condition proposed by the Police: 
 
 The licence holder shall ensure that all cashiers are trained to ask any customer 

attempting to purchase alcohol, who appears to be under the age of 25 years (or 
older if the licence holder so elects) for evidence of age.  This evidence shall be 
photographic, such as passport or photographic driving licence until other effective 
identification technology (for example, thumb print or pupil recognition) is 
introduced. All cashiers will be instructed, through training, that a sale shall not be 
made unless this evidence is produced. 

page 79



 
 
15. An age till prompt system will be utilised at the premises in respect of age restricted 

products.  
 
 Alternate condition proposed by the Police: 
 

All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when 
presented with an alcohol sale. 

 
16. A refusals register (whether kept and written or electronic form) will be maintained at the 

premises and will be made available for inspection upon request by an authorised 
Officer of the Police or Local Authority.  

 
Conditions proposed by the Police  
 
17. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested.  

 
18. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers 

only, and shall not be consumed on the premises.  
(Condition 18 also proposed by Environmental Health) 

 
19. Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol and whilst the premises are 

open to the public, the licence holder shall ensure that all alcohol within the 
premises (including alcohol behind the counter) is secured in a locked store room 
or behind locked grilles, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent 
access to the alcohol by both customers and staff.  

 (Condition 19 also proposed by Environmental Health) 
 
 Applicant proposes amended wording: 
 
 During the hours that the premises is open but not authorised to sell alcohol, all 

alcohol within the trading area shall be secured behind locked screens that 
customers do not have access to it.  

 
20. No super-strength beer, lagers, ciders or spirit mixtures of 5.5% ABV (alcohol by 

volume) or above shall be sold at the premises, except for premium beers and 
ciders supplied in glass bottles 
(Condition 20 also proposed by Environmental Health)  

 
Applicant proposes amended wording: 

 
 No beer, larger or cider of 5.5% ABV or above shall be sold at the premises save 

that this prohibition shall not apply to premium products such as craft and 
microbrewery products, or products produced to commemorate specific event or 
similar.   

 
21. No single cans or bottles of beer or cider or spirit mixtures shall be sold at the 

premises.  
 
22. No more than (15)% of the sales area shall be used at any one time for the sale, 

exposure for sale, or display of alcohol.  
(Condition 22 also proposed by Environmental Health) 

page 80



 
Applicant proposes amended wording: 

 
 No more than 15% of the trading area shall at any one time be given over to the 

display of alcohol.  
 
23. There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures 

less than 5.5% ABV. 
 (Condition 23 also proposed by Environmental Health) 
  

Applicant proposes amended wording: 
 
 There shall be no self-service of spirit, save for mixed spirits with an ABV of 5.5% 

or less.  
 
24. Prominent signage indicating the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol shall be 

displayed so as to be visible before entering the premises, where alcohol is on 
public display, and at the point of sale.  

 (Condition 24 also proposed by Environmental Health) 
 
 Applicant proposes amended wording: 
 
 Notices shall be displayed in the premises confirming that the hours during which 

alcohol may be sold.   
 
25. All cashiers will receive refresher training on relevant alcohol laws and the licence 

holder’s policy on challenging for ID. Such training to take place at least twice a 
year. Records will be maintained at the premises containing information about the 
training of any person who may make a sale of alcohol including the date of their 
training and the nature of the training undertaken.  The relevant documentation 
shall be produced on request to a police officer or a relevant officer of a 
responsible authority. 

 
26. Prior to any "designated sporting event" (as defined in the Sporting Events Control 

of Alcohol Act 1985) the premises licence holder shall ensure that;  
(i) Alcohol sales in respect of cans of beer or cider are limited to no more than 

4 cans per person for a minimum of four hours before the commencement 
of the relevant designated sporting event;  

(ii) No sales of alcohol in bottles or glass containers are made in the period 
four hours before the commencement of the designated sporting event;  

(iii) Alcohol sales cease for a period of one hour immediately before the 
commencement of the relevant designated sporting event;  

(iv) On any day where there is a relevant designated sporting event taking 
place, the premises will not externally advertise as a result of a local store 
promotion the availability of beer or cider in such a way as to be likely to be 
the sole inducement to attract persons to the premises who are either 
attending the designated sporting event or in the vicinity of the premises as 
a result of the designated sporting event;  

(v) All members of staff working at the premises are informed of this condition 
prior to taking up employment;  

(vi) On the day of the relevant designated sporting event, upon the direction of 
a police officer, using the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder 
or public safety, the premises will immediately cease to sell alcohol until 
further directed by the police or until the relevant designated sporting event 
has finished.  

 

page 81



27. As soon as possible, and in any event within 1 month from the grant of this 
licence, the premises shall join the local Pubwatch or other local crime reduction 
scheme approved by the police, and local radio scheme if available.  

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health not agreed with applicant: 
 
28. A challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

 
 Applicant proposes amended wording:  
 
 A Proof of age scheme, such as Challenge 25, shall be operated at the premises 

whereby the only acceptable forms of identification are a valid passport, UK Driving 
Licensing, any form of identification containing the PASS hologram, military identification 
or any other form of identification time to time approved by the Secretary of State.  

 
29. All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification identification when 

presented with an alcohol sale. 
 
 Applicant proposes amended wording: 
 
 An electronic till prompt system shall be installed and maintained at the premises which 

reminds staff to ask for age verification  
 

30. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
 Applicant proposes amended wording: 
 
 No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 

structure of the premises which gives rise to public nuisance.   
 
31. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed 

in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 07.00 hours. 
 
 

32. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
33. The Licence will have no effect until the premises have been assessed as satisfactory 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and this condition has been removed 
from the Licence. 

 
 Applicant proposes amended wording:  
 
 No licensable activity shall be permitted at the premises until the premises have been 

inspected by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and they have confirmed that 
policies and procedures are in place which enables the Premises Licence Holder to fulfil 
the conditions attached to the licence. The inspection of the premises shall be concluded 
within 3 working days of EHCT being notified by the Premises Licence Holder that the 
premises is about to open.  

 

page 82



 EHCT shall notify the Premises Licence Holder that they are so satisfied, or what steps 
need to be taken to rectify any inadequacies, within 24 hours of the inspection taking 
place. If ECHT do not fulfil the requirement the Premises Licence Holder may, in any 
event, conduct licensable activities.   

 
Conditions proposed by Environmental Health and agreed with applicant: 
 

34. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include the date 
and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. 
The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised 
officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open. 

 
Condition 35 proposed by Environmental Health – both EH and applicant agree 
this condition to be deleted: 
 

35. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 
minutes before the scheduled collection times. 

 
 

page 83



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 

page 84



Premises within 75 metres of: Co-Operative, 190- 192 Baker Street, NW1 5RT 

p / n  Name of Premises Premises Address Licensed Hours 

18/03689/LIPDP
S 

Yo! Sushi 194 Baker Street 
London NW1 5RT 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 
 Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

16/14143/LIPV Baker Street News 202 Baker Street 
London NW1 5RT 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 00:00 

16/08817/LIPT Cinnamon Spice 12-14 Glentworth 
Street London NW1 
5PG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:00  
 
 Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 
 

15/11337/LIPDP
S 

Pizza Hut 187 Baker Street 
London NW1 6UY 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
 Sunday; 12:00 - 23:30 
 

06/11925/WCC Nambu-tei 
Japanese 
Restaurant 

Berkeley Arcade 209A 
Baker Street London 
NW1 6AB 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:00  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 
 

18/03949/LIPDP
S 

Tesco 11-15 Melcombe 
Street London NW1 
6AE 

Monday to Sunday; 06:00 - 00:00 

17/12765/LIPDP
S 

LAntica Pizzeria Da 
Michele 

197 Baker Street 
London NW1 6UY 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

18/01981/LIPT Cinnamon Spice 12-14 Glentworth 
Street London NW1 
5PG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:00  
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 
 

15/06926/LIPN Treats Platform 1 & 2 Baker 
Street Station 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LA 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 00:00 

15/06461/LIPN Treats Buffet Bar In 
Metropolitan Line 
Ticket Hall Baker 
Street Station 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LA 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 00:00 

15/06968/LIPN Treats Shop B In Jubilee Line 
Ticket Hall Baker 
Street Station 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LA 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 00:00 

15/11890/LIPR
W 

Francesca 
Restaurant 

215 Baker Street 
London NW1 6XE 

Monday to Sunday; 07:00 - 21:00 

page 85



16/08143/LIPVM Arizona 134 Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5PH 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 06:00 

15/04818/LIPDP
S 

One Stop Food 
And Wine 

142 Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5PH 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 - 
23:00  
 
 Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 

14/07362/LIPN The Pie Shop Ground Floor 5 
Station Approach 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LD 

Monday to Saturday; 07:00 - 
00:00  
 
 Sunday; 09:00 - 22:30 

18/02822/LIPDP
S 

M  &  S Food On 
The Move 

Ground Floor Station 
Approach 7A 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LD 

Monday to Sunday; 07:00 - 00:00 

18/00875/LIPVM The Metropolitan 
Bar 

7 Station Approach 
Marylebone Road 
London NW1 5LD 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 09:00 - 00:00 
 

 

page 86



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5 July 2018 

   

Licensing Ref No:  18/04918/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Abuelo 
26 Southampton Street 
London 
WC2E 7JA 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James's 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 76412751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 87

Agenda Item 3



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 1 May 2018 

Applicant: Abuelo Covent Garden Limited 
 

Premises: Abuelo 
 

Premises address: 26 Southampton Street 
London 
WC2E 7JA 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

According to the application, the premises currently operates 
as a cafe/restaurant.  
 

Premises licence history: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence and therefore 
no history exists.  
 

Applicant submissions: None submitted. 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On Sales  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 10:00 

End: 22:00 22:00 22:00 22:00 23:00 23:00 22:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 
Amended Hours for Sale of Alcohol: 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On Sales  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 22:00 22:00 22:00 22:00 23:00 23:00 22:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 10:00 

End: 22:00 22:00 22:00 22:00 23:00 23:00 22:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

No applied for.  

 

page 88



 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team (Withdrawn) 

Representative:  Mrs Sally Fabbricatore 
 

Received:  
 

18th May 2018  

  
I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above premises.  
 
The premises are situated in the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated in City of 
Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
This representation is based on the Operating Schedule and the ground floor plan of the 
premises, this does not have a drawing number and it has not been dated.   
 
The applicant is seeking the following on the ground floor: 
  

1. To allow the Supply of Alcohol ‘on’ the premises Monday to Thursday 08:00 – 22:00, 
Friday and Saturday 08:00 -23:00 hours and Sunday 10:00-22:00 hours.     

 
I wish to make the following representation in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The provision of the Supply of Alcohol may cause an increase in Public Nuisance in the 
cumulative impact area, it may also impact on Public Safety. 
 

The applicant has proposed conditions within the operating schedule which are being 
considered.  Further conditions may be proposed by Environmental Health in order to help 
prevent Public Nuisance and protect Public Safety.   
 
It does not appear there is a customer WC. Reference should be made to the British Standard 
6465-1:2009 Sanitary Installations - Table 10. If customers are to dine in the premises, 
customer facilities will need to be provided. 
 
The granting of the new Premises Licence as presented would have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the cumulative area and may impact on Public 
Safety. 
 
Further comments:  
 
You mentioned private bookings, would the alcohol still be to people eating or would you 
operate it as a standing bar?  
  
Please find my proposed conditions attached, let me know your thoughts and if you are 
agreeable to them.  
  
I have double checked your plan and it does include some of the outside area, so I have 
conditioned this as well. 
  
With regard to the timings for the sale of alcohol you said you would be in agreement to amend 
the start time to 10:00 hours Monday to Sunday to be more in line with The Council’s Core 
Hours policy – (save for Sundays)). Please confirm if you are happy to amend your application.  
  

page 89



This is the link to the Food Standard’s Agency website and the documented food safety system. 
It is a legal requirement to have a documented food safety system and this is one example of 
how you can fulfil this requirement, you can of course write your own, but this is a good guide - 
 https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/safer-food-better-business  
  
Allergen guidance – https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/allergen-information-for-
different-business-types  (there are quite a few pages about this) 
  
Response:  
 
With respect to the private bookings, they operate as a time slot that is a restaurant booking for 
dining.  We only take bookings if all patrons are seated and eating. As we are very small, our 
business is structured to promote our beautiful food, meaning we can't afford to allow customers 
to take a space without spending money on food. When we are able to serve alcohol, the drinks 
will still be secondary to the food, as we don't see that we can afford to have people sitting and 
drinking only, nor do we want to look like a bar. We have set it up to look like a homely dining 
space. Our bookings are normal restaurant reservations and the private bookings are only when 
the group is big enough to take over the whole space, but sitting down for a time slot that is 
limited. As you could see, we don't have space to serve people if they are standing as they 
would be in our way.  
  
I have no problem with your proposed conditions. 
  
Response:  
 
I will be now withdrawing my representation due to you agreeing my proposed conditions and 
you have amended your hours as detailed in the attached email.  
 
Conditions have now been agreed in this matter and as a result Environmental Health 
have now withdrawn their representation.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn) 

Representative: PC Cheryl Boon  
 

Received: 
 

9th May 2018 

With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, 
as a responsible authority, will be objecting to this application at this stage in the application 
process. The venue is situated inside Westminster's Cumulative Impact Area and it is our belief 
that if granted the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
 
I have looked through the application and as per our telephone conversation earlier we would 
like to attend your venue to discuss your plans as feel there are insufficient undertakings at this 
stage. Myself and my colleague PC Russell will be attending 1pm on Friday 9th May 2018 to 
discuss this fully and then try and propose licensing conditions for your application. 
 
If you have any questions in the meantime then please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Further comments:  

Thank you for taking the time to meet with us last week. As promised, below are the conditions 
proposed by the Metropolitan Police. Please let us know whether you would agree to them 
being added to any future operating schedule should a licence be granted. If you are able to do 
this it may enable us to withdraw our representation. If you have any questions or queries 
please do not hesitate to get in touch 

page 90

https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/safer-food-better-business
https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/allergen-information-for-different-business-types
https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance/allergen-information-for-different-business-types


 1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all 
times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be 
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with 
the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 3. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant (i) in which customers are shown to their 
table, (ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, (iii) which provide 
food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises and are served 
and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery, (iv) which do not provide any take 
away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, (v) which do not provide any take 
away service of food or drink after 23.00, and (vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, 
otherwise than for consumption by persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by 
such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. Notwithstanding this condition customers are 
permitted to take from the premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied 
ancillary to their meal. 

 4. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, shall 
not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  

 5. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of 
local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 6. A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a 
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

 7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the 
incident and will record the following: (a) all crimes reported to the venue (b) all ejections of 
patrons (c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder (d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching 
equipment or scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol (h) any visit by a 
relevant authority or emergency service. 

 8. There shall be no self-service of alcohol. 

 I trust you find this satisfactory and I look forward to your prompt response. 

Response from applicant:  
 
Everything is totally acceptable and I look forward to hearing further. 
 
Response from MET Police:  
 
Thanks for your prompt response. 
 
Based on your agreement to the conditions below being added to any future operating schedule 

page 91



the police representation is now withdrawn. 
 
As a result of the agreement of conditions, the MET Police Service have now withdrawn 
their representation.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative: Miss Daisy Gadd  
 

Received: 
 

18th May 2018 

  
I write in relation to the application submitted for a New Premises Licence for Abuelo, situated at 
26 Southampton Street.  
  
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the 
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
  

         Public Nuisance  
         Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
         Public Safety  
         Protection of children from harm  

  
The application seeks to permit the following licensable activities:  
  

         Supply of alcohol (on):   Monday to Thursday:     08:00 to 22:00 
     Friday to Saturday:         08:00 to 23:00 
     Sunday:                          10:00 to 22:00 

  
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area and as such a number of 
policy points must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1 and RNT2.  
  
The hours applied for licensable activities currently fall outside of Westminster’s core hours. The 
Licensing Authority would like to encourage the applicant to consider reducing the 
commencement hours for licensable activities to be in line with those of Westminster’s core 
hours, which are the following:  
  
                Monday to Saturday:      10:00  
                Sunday:                           12:00  
  
This application currently falls within policy RNT2. The applicant has accepted the Metropolitan 
Police’s proposal of model condition 66. However, the applicant must also demonstrate that the 
operation of the premises will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Area. No 
additional information has been received which addresses this policy concern, and the 
Licensing Authority encourages the applicant to provide further submissions as to how the 
premises will not add to cumulative impact.  
  
Further discussions will be held with the applicant prior to the hearing and any further 
submissions will be forwarded on for Members information.  
  
Please accept this as a formal representation.  
 
Response:  
 
I wish to offer some further information specific to your concerns in the Cumulative Impact Area 

page 92

https://maps.google.com/?q=26+Southampton+Street&entry=gmail&source=g


within which we fall. I am totally understanding of any concern that would make the impact of 
alcohol greater in this area, especially since my family and I are also residents of Covent 
Garden.  
 
Firstly, I would like to point out that our premises are very small, seating up to 20. We have 
been operating since 17th March this year and we are happy with the way our food has been 
received so far, however it is clear that the customer base in this area do prefer to have a drink 
with their food. We always intended to apply for a licence but we wanted to get our operation 
open first so that we could understand fully what the customers wanted.   
 
We do not intend to turn our premises into a bar and or serve alcohol without substantial food. 
 
We agreed to the condition of only serving alcohol with food as it is our intention to continue to 
promote our food as our focus, and a glass of wine would accompany that, in that order.  
 
As I live in Apartment 8/ 1 Exchange Court, off Maiden Lane (only around the corner from our 
shop in Southampton St) I am well aware of the impact of drinking numbers in the area and 
believe that our customers are not the same as those wishing to drink only to get drunk. I 
already am impacted by the activity and noise of the surrounding pubs (we live behind the 
Porterhouse).  
 
We are not wanting a liquor licence to create more nuisance to our own area.  
 
We also agree that alcohol would not be consumed on the footpath unless in a plastic cup, 
however we do not want to allow any drinking outside our premises at all as again I want to 
reiterate that our alcohol licence would simply be used for the sake of having a glass of wine 
with dinner, not to become a bar or drinking hot spot. 
 
 
As I said, we do not intend for drinkers to be served standing inside or outside - alcohol would 
only be served to customers seated and eating. This is something that is not possible 
regardless as we simply do not have the space for people to stand. We have a healthy menu 
that attracts a stylish, quiet crowd looking to step away from that scene, and in the time that we 
have been operating we have not seen any drunk people coming from the pubs to eat at our 
place after already consuming alcohol as it is simply not the vibe. It is possible that they are 
different clientele, looking for a different night out.  
 
We have spent a lot of money on our fit out, we have expensive furniture and paintings and as 
an architect I have gone through an immense effort to create the interiors - meaning I do not 
want to encourage any rowdy, drunkenness. I have had a liquor licence in Sydney and 
Melbourne in the past and never had any problems, so I am aware of the responsibilities that 
come with this territory.  
 
I want to also point out that the rent in Covent Garden is incredibly high and for a space as 
small as ours we need to trade from morning until night to make enough money to continue our 
business - unfortunately the evening food service is almost entirely hampered by our lack of an 
alcohol menu. People in the area are going out to the theatres and so on and want to have a 
glass of wine with dinner and we are not able to compete with other small restaurants in the 
area without that. Unfortunately we do need a wine list to encourage the sale of our dinner 
menu. Our proposed liquor menu would be very small and include two red wines, two white 
wines, two beers and 4 cocktails. 
 
Having said the above I truly believe that if we are granted a liquor licence and we manage it 
within our small space as a drink that is ordered with food, we will not be adding to public 
nuisance or crime in the area, nor placing the public, in particular children, at risk.   
 
With respect to the opening hours, Monday to Saturday at 10.00am is fine but I would like to 

page 93



also ask for 10.00am on Sunday as we are a popular brunch location and with that it is not 
uncommon for customers to want a glass of champagne or prosecco with the food that we 
serve, which is more of an 'all day' dining serving full size meals of eggs, fritters, roast 
vegetables, lamb tostados and salads, in other words substantial food not muesli and muffins. I 
have attached our menu for your information.   
 
I hope this information answers your concerns. 
 

 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Covent Garden Community Association 

Received:  
 

4th June 2018 

This representation is being made on behalf of the Covent Garden Community Association. 
 
We do not have an objection to the nature of the operation described by the general description 
of the premises. However this is not reflected in the operating schedule. If the premises were 
granted a licence without these restrictions it could operate in a way which would harm the 
Public Nuisance Licensing Objective. 
 
We would like to have the following conditions, which reflect the description, included on the 
face of the licence. 
 
the sale of alcohol shall only be made when ancillary to a substantial table meal (to include a 
sharing plate of cheese and charcuterie etc) and only to seated customers. 
 
The alcohol supplied shall be restricted to wine only 
 
We would also like the applicant to propose a seated capacity and for this to be included on the 
Licence 

Received:  
 

24th May 2018  

This licence is to run too late in an already crowded bar area that is mainly residential, and can 
only contribute to more late night noise, especially at the weekend. 

Received:  
 

27th May 2018  

Please note the following comments. : 
 
Southampton Street is predominantly residential and centrally located in the wonderful vibrant 
Covent Garden Conservation area.  The above venue is completely surrounded by residential 
properties - adjoining, above and opposite.   Our historical neighbourhood daily welcomes 
tourists, families, business workers, theatre goers.  The 7000 residents enjoy the rapport.   
 
-  Alcohol attracts noise and anti social behaviour, outside vertical drinkers, music, 
-  Late opening hours not acceptable 
-  Currently black plastic trash bags and cardboard food containers (not crushed) are left 
overnight on the public footpath by Abuelo staff.  This is attracting vermin rats and pigeons have 
been observed. 
-  Interior bottle crusher needed for quiet glass disposal. 
-  Deliveries and on site workmen not observing WCC permitted hours regulations 
 
Thank you for your attention. 
 

  
 

page 94



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy CIP1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises, 
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii)  Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must demonstrate 
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas.  

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies. 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary hours 
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

page 95



 
 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

 
Equality Implications 
 
The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to its 
public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In summary, 
section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have 
due regard to the need to:  
 
(a)  eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 

is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b)  advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c)  foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristics and persons who do not share it.  
 
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics 
as age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or 
belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 
 
Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrane 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018  

4 Application Form  1st May 2018 

5 Representation – Environmental Health (withdrawn)        18th May 2018 

6 Representation – MET Police (Withdrawn) 9th May 2018  

7 Representation – Licensing Authority  18th May 2018  

8 Representation  4th June 2018 

9 Representation  27th May 2018 

10 Representation  24th May 2018  

page 96



 
        Appendix 1 

Premises Plans 
 

 
 

page 97



page 98



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 
 

page 99



page 100



        Appendix 3 
Premises History 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 

page 101



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 102



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 103



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 104



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule – replaced by agreed EH and MET 
conditions.  
 
9.  Staff training in the awareness of alcohol service laws, the premises license and 

requirements. This will include selling alcohol to underage people, drunk or disorderly 
behaviour on or outside the premises, illicit drug use or sale, violent or anti social 
behaviour or harm to children. All staff will be trained on the Licensing Act and adhere to 
the hours of operation and the licensable activities during those hours. 

 
10. CCTV system to be installed at the premises.  
 
11. Signage will be displayed to request that our staff and customers respect the needs of 

residents and leave quietly.  
 
12. Deliveries of goods will be carried out at a time or in a manner that prevents disturbance. 

Movement of rubbish bins will be kept to a minimum very early or late in the day to avoid 
disrupting sleep of residents nearby.  

 
13. Adopt a 'challenge 25' strategy which encourages anyone over 18 but looks 

under 25 to display true ID if they intend to purchase any alcohol. All staff will be well 
trained on this. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Police, agreed by the applicant  

14.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

15.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

16.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant : 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table,  

(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  

(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable 
crockery,  

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption,  

(v)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and 

(vi)  where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such 

page 105



persons is ancillary to taking such meals. Notwithstanding this condition 
customers are permitted to take from the premises part consumed and resealed 
bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. 

17.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 
shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  

18.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

19.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

20.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 

(a)  all crimes reported to the venue  

(b)  all ejections of patrons  

(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  

(d)  any incidents of disorder  

(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  

(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  

(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 21.  There shall be no self-service of alcohol. 

onditions proposed by the Environmental Health, agreed by the applicant 
 

22. The number of seated persons on the ground floor (excluding staff) shall not exceed 20 
persons.  
 

23. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
24. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 07.00 hours on the following day.  
 
25.  All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 

26. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

page 106



 
27. All tables and chairs shall be removed from the outside area by (23.00) each day. 
 
Conditions Proposed by the Covent Garden Community Association: 
 
28. The sale of alcohol shall only be made when ancillary to a substantial table meal (to 

include a sharing plate of cheese and charcuterie etc) and only to seated customers. 
 
29. The alcohol supplied shall be restricted to wine only. 
 
 

 
 

page 107



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

page 108



Premises within 75 metres of: Abuelo, 26 Southampton Street, WC2E 7JA   

p / n  Name of Premises Premises Address Licensed Hours 

18/00927/LIPDP
S 

Covent Garden 
Grind 

42 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 7LJ 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00  
 
 Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 
 

15/11428/LIPDP
S 

Wagamama 1A Tavistock Street 
London WC2E 7PA 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

18/01122/LIPDP
S 

The Ivy Market Grill 1A Henrietta Street 
London WC2E 8PS 

Monday to Thursday; 07:00 - 
00:30 
 
Friday; 07:00 - 01:00  
 
Saturday; 08:00 - 01:00  
 
Sunday; 08:00 - 23:30 
 

16/12576/LIPDP
S 

Maple Leaf Ground Floor 41 
Maiden Lane London 
WC2E 7LJ 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 
 

16/10196/LIPCH Franco Manca 38 - 39 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 7LJ 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 
 

17/10013/LIPDP
S 

Masons Cafe Bar Basement And 
Ground Floor 5 - 6 
Henrietta Street 
London WC2E 8PS 
 

Monday to Saturday; 07:30 - 
00:00  
 
Sunday; 09:00 - 23:30 

16/10339/LIPVM Honest Burgers Basement To First 
Floor 33 Southampton 
Street London WC2E 
7HE 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00  
 
Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:30 
 

17/09679/LIPCH Da Polpo Ground Floor 6 
Maiden Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00  
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:30 
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 23:00  
 

page 109



Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
09:00 - 00:30 

18/00718/LIPDP
S 

Thai Pin 
Restaurant 

Ground Floor 7 - 8 
Maiden Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

10/09349/LIPD Prima Sapori 
D'Italia 

Basement To Second 
Floor Hudson House 8 
Tavistock Street 
London WC2E 7PP 
 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 - 
21:00 
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 21:00 

17/02037/LIPN The Frog 35 Southampton 
Street London WC2E 
7HE 

Monday to Thursday; 08:00 - 
00:00  
 
Friday to Saturday; 08:00 - 00:30  
 
Sunday; 08:00 - 23:00  
 
Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
08:00 - 00:30  
 

12/06980/LIPN Prima Sapori 
D'Italia 

Unit 2 Jubilee Hall 
Jubilee Market The 
Piazza Covent 
Garden London 
WC2E 8BE 
 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 - 
23:00 
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 22:30 

15/00660/LIPT Rules Restaurant 34-35 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 7LB 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

10/05496/LIPN Hola Paella 28B The Piazza 
Covent Garden 
London WC2E 8RD 
 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 - 
23:00 
 
 Sunday; 09:00 - 22:30 

10/05017/LIPV Andronicas World 
Of Coffee 

28B The Piazza 
Covent Garden 
London WC2E 8RD 

Monday to Friday; 08:00 - 00:30 
 
Saturday to Sunday; 10:00 - 
00:30 
 

17/08680/LIPN Andronicas World 
Of Coffee (Shadow 
27B The Piazza) 

28B The Piazza 
Covent Garden 
London WC2E 8RD 

Monday to Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:30 
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 00:30 
 

16/06937/LIPCH Punch And Judy 
Public House 

The Punch And Judy 
40 The Market Covent 
Garden London 
WC2E 8RF 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30  
 
Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 23:30 

page 110



 

 
 

page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5th July 2018 

   

Licensing Ref No:  18/03438/LIPV – Premises Licence Variation 

   

Title of Report:  Café Fiori 
42 Cranbourn Street 
London 
WC2H 7JH 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James’s 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Miss Sam Eaton 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2700 
Email: seaton@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
  

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 113

Agenda Item 4

mailto:seaton@westminster.gov.uk


1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 29 March 2018 

Applicant: Mr Levy Meir 

Premises: Café Fiori 

Premises address: 42 Cranbourn Street 
London 
WC2H 7JH 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

The premises operate as a restaurant. 

Variation description: The proposed variation application seeks to remove condition 
15 in Annex 3 which prevents any takeaway service being 
provided to customers between 03:00 and 05:00 daily. All 
hours, activities and other conditions to remain as existing. 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises have benefitted from a licence since July 2005.  
A full history can be found at Appendix 2. 

Planning Permission: The premises benefit from planning permission to place 
tables and chairs on the public highway, reference: 
06/08678/TCH 

Applicant submissions: None. 

 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Provision of facilities for making music 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 01:00  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday 10:00 01:00 

Wednesday 10:00 01:00 

Thursday 10:00 01:00 

Friday 10:00 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 01:00 

Sunday 12:00 23:30 

Seasonal  
variations: 

Current: Proposed: 

None None 

Non-standard  
timings: 

Current:  Proposed: 

None None 

 
  

page 114



Performance of live music 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 01:00  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday 10:00 01:00 

Wednesday 10:00 01:00 

Thursday 10:00 01:00 

Friday 10:00 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 01:00 

Sunday 12:00 23:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

None. None. 

None. None. 

 

Playing of recorded Music 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday Unrestricted  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday Unrestricted 

Wednesday Unrestricted 

Thursday Unrestricted 

Friday Unrestricted 

Saturday Unrestricted 

Sunday Unrestricted 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

None. None. 

None. None. 

 

Private entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 
kind for consideration and with a view to profit 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday Unrestricted  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday Unrestricted 

Wednesday Unrestricted 

Thursday Unrestricted 

Friday Unrestricted 

Saturday Unrestricted 

Sunday Unrestricted 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

None. None. 

None. None. 

 
  

page 115



 

Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Both No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 05:00  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday 23:00 05:00 

Wednesday 23:00 05:00 

Thursday 23:00 05:00 

Friday 23:00 05:00 

Saturday 23:00 05:00 

Sunday 23:00 05:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

None None 

None None 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

Both No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 01:00  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday 10:00 01:00 

Wednesday 10:00 01:00 

Thursday 10:00 01:00 

Friday 10:00 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 01:00 

Sunday 12:00 23:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

No change No change 

On New Year's Eve from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on the 
following day (or, if there are no 
permitted hours on the following 
day, 00.00 midnight on 31st 
December). 

No change 

 
  

page 116



 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 05:00  
 
 

No change 

 
 
 

Ground Floor 

 
 
 

No change 

Tuesday 10:00 05:00 

Wednesday 10:00 05:00 

Thursday 10:00 05:00 

Friday 10:00 05:00 

Saturday 10:00 05:00 

Sunday 12:00 05:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

No change No change 

On New Year's Eve from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on the 
following day (or, if there are no 
permitted hours on the following 
day, 00.00 midnight on 31st 
December). 

No change 

 

1-C Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

15.    There shall be no takeaway service 
between 03:00 and 05:00 hours. 

To be removed 

 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative: PC Adam Deweltz 
 

Received: 
 

5th April 2018 

  
With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a 
Responsible Authority, will be making a representation against this application.  
 
The venue is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area and it is our belief that if granted the 
application would undermine the Licensing Objectives in relation to The Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder.  
 
This application will have to be heard before the LSC.  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

page 117



Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority 

Representative:  Daisy Gadd 

Received:  
 

25th April 2018 

  
I write in relation to the application submitted for a variation of the premises licence for Café 
Fiori, situated at 42 Cranbourn Street.  
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under 
the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2003 the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full.  
 
The variation application seeks to remove condition 15 from the premises licence which 
currently reads as the following: 
 
There shall be no takeaway service between 03:00 and 05:00 hours. 
 
The premises is located within a Cumulative Impact Area and as such a number of policy points 
must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1 and FFP2. 
 
This application currently falls within policy FFP2. Paragraph 2.5.18 of the Council’s Statement 
of Licensing Policy 2016 states that “The congregation of people around these premises leads 
to additional noise and disturbance and further congestion in the area”. Policy FFP2 states that 
“the grant of variations or new licences for fast food premises in the Cumulative Impact Areas 
should be limited to exceptional circumstances.” It will be for Members to determine whether 
the applicant has demonstrated any exceptional circumstances that would allow to depart from 
this policy.  
 
Furthermore, the Licensing Authority believes that there is insufficient information contained 
within the application that sets out how the licensee will reduce the impact of public nuisance 
from allowing a takeaway service between 03:00 and 05:00 hours. The Licensing Authority 
requires the following additional information to fully consider the likely impact on the Licensing 
Objectives, specifically public nuisance:  
 
1)      What controls will the licensee have in place to ensure that public nuisance isn’t created 
via the additional hours of operation for takeaway service?  
 
2)      What measures will the licensee provide to mitigate any risk of increased public nuisance 
to residents in the area? 
 
Further discussions will be held with the applicants prior to the hearing and any further 
submissions will be forwarded on for Members information.  
 
Please accept this as a formal representation.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 118



2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Councillor Louise Hyams (Support) 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Westminster City Council  
5 The Strand 
London WC2N 5HR 

Received:  
 

19th April 2018 

I am aware that Fiori Restaurant in Cranbourne Street are applying  for a variation to their 
licence at the above premises in my ward to enable them to serve takeaway food on Friday 
and Saturday evenings for an extra two hours. 
 
If they can confirm the following conditions, I am happy to support the application. 
 
1.  They will improve their  CCTV both inside and outside the restaurant 
2.  They will do regular and extensive litter picks in the vicinity of the premises to include the    

nearby night bus stop and the entrances to Leicester Square tube 
3.  They will only use one door during the extension of hours so that the takeaway service is 

easier to control 
4.  They cannot sell alcoholic drinks to consume off the premises during those extra 2 hours 
 
I do understand the merit of opening later for takeaway so that they do not have to turn people 
away when they are anxious to get home and do not want a sit down meal. That should also 
assist with the police's desire for people to leave the Leicester Square area as soon as possible 
after they exit the night clubs. I know that the  premises are very close to the night bus stop and 
Leicester Square Tube and with the all-night running of these transport services on Fridays and 
Saturdays it will allow for very quick dispersal. 
 
With the assurance that they will provide the conditions that I have requested numbered 1-4 
above, I am happy to support the variation. 
 

Name: Heart of London Business Alliance (support) 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Sackville House 
40 Piccadilly 
London W1J 0DR 

Received:  
 

20th April 2018 

 
Heart of London Business Alliance, serves as the voice for 500 business and 100 property 
owners in the Picadilly & St James’s and Leicester Square areas.  Our purpose is to support 
the commercial wellbeing of the businesses and organisations we represent, and ensure our 
areas remain integral to London’s West End offer as a place for people to visit, live, trade and 
work.  We represent the most mature night time economy area in London where over 400 
million visits are made to the West End every year, with some of the world’s best entertainment, 
culture and hospitality, generating over £11 billion in sales. 
 
We strive for the West End to have the most varied and high-quality even and night time 
economy (ENTE) for visitors, workers and residents. 
 
We continue to promote a responsible night time.  Crime and anti-social (ASB) associated with 
the ENTE have been on a long downward trend and we need to be positive about the 
opportunities and benefits that this brings. 
 
In fact, strong partnership work and industry standards have been made huge progress in this 
regard. 

page 119



 
What is restrictive for this night time economy user is not to find the basic ‘daytime’ services, 
like a cup of coffee or a takeout on the way home.  By allowing the takeout service to continue 
along the same hours as the restaurant opening times, users cab then choose to pick up a 
takeout on the way home, allowing them to get home faster. 
 
This letter is in support of the application submitted by Mr Meir Levy for the trading premises 
Fiori Corner, Address: 42 Cranbourn Street, London WC2H 7AN to have his trading hours 
extended over weekends. 
 
Mr Levy has discussed with us in much detail and we are satisfied that as part of his application 
sufficient operational due diligence has been considered.  
 
We have advised Mr Levy, that should he be able to demonstrate sufficient operational due 
diligence and responsible venue management we would be happy to support this application. 
 
Below are the minimum standards he would need to consider for us have agreed, for us to 
support this application. 
 
1.   A dedicated janitorial litter picker be onsite to account for un surface litter generated   

because   of his trading activity, this will complement the existing Veolia service already 
in place. 

2.      Upgrade and enhance the CCTV surveillance operation both internally and externally. 
3.   To restrict access to the establishment by using one entry/exit point-providing greater 

control. 
4.   Participate in the Best Bar None business accreditation scheme raising standards to 

promote responsible management. 
 
We are grateful for the opportunity to submit this submission in support of our Business member 
and are happy to provide any further assistance if required. 
 
Robin Hibbert – Head of Delivery 

 
3. 

 
Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i)   Applications for hours within the core hours set out below  in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii)   Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in 
this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

Policy CIA1 applies: 

 

(i)   It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 

Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

Policy FFP2 applies: 
 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas, other than applications to vary hours 
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

page 120



 
4. Equality  Implications 

 
The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to its public sector 
equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In summary, section 149 provides that 
a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:  
 
(a)  eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited 

by or under this Act;  
(b)  advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c)  foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristics and 

persons who do not share it.  
 
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual 
orientation. 
 
5. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Miss Sam Eaton 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2700 
Email: seaton@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2017 

4 Planning Permission for tables and chairs reference 
- 06/08678/TCH 

August 2007 

5 Representation – Metropolitan Police Service 5th April 2018 

6 Representation – Licensing Service          25th April 2018 

7 Representation – Support – Councillor Hyams 19th April 2018 

8 Representation Support – Heart of London 
Business Alliance 

20th April 2018 

 

page 121



           Appendix 1 
Premises Plans  
 

 
 

page 122



           Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 
None. 

 

page 123



Appendix 3 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Decision 
 

 
Date Determined 

05/06744/LIPCV Conversion 
Application 

Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
committee 

21.09.2005 

06/13278/WCCMAP New Premises 
Application 

Granted Under 
Delegated 
Authority 

14.01.2008 

07/11469/LIPV Variation Application Granted Under 
Delegated 
Authority 

14.01.2008 

09/10196/LIPV Variation Application Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
committee 

11.02.2010 

11/00303/LIPV Variation Application Refused by 
Licensing Sub-
committee 

17.03.2011 

17/15035/LIPT Transfer Application Granted Under 
Delegated 
Authority 

15.02.2018 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 124



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence 
subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed 
as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an 
interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service 
but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not 
necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.       (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which 
the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 125



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 

in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 

is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 
or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For 
premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 126



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol 

under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall 
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest 
penny. 

 
8(iv).  (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 
the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 

Conditions reproducing the effect of conditions subject to which relevant existing 
licences have effect 
 
Conditions relating to Late Night Refreshment 

page 127



 
9. This licence is subject to all the former regulations made by Westminster City Council 

prescribing standard conditions for annual night café licences, effective from 1 October 
2001. 

 
Conditions for Sale of Alcohol 
 
10. The maximum number of persons, including staff, to be present in the licensed premises 

shall not exceed the number specified from time to time by the proper officer of the 
London Fire and Civil Defence Authority. As to the ground floor 100 persons  

 
11. In that part of the premises hatched green on the deposited plan intoxicating liquor shall 

not be sold or supplied otherwise than to persons taking table meals there & for 
consumption by any such person as an ancillary to his meal.  

 
12. Suitable beverages, other than intoxicating liquor including drinking water, shall be 

equally available for consumption with or otherwise as an ancillary to food supplied in 
the premises. 

 
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the premises by 
specified enactments. 
 
13.   (i) Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. 
 

In this condition, permitted hours means: 
 

(a)  On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 10.00 
to 23.00. 

(b)  On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12.00 noon to 22.30. 
(c)  On Good Friday, 12.00 to 22.30. 
(d)  On Christmas Day, 12.00 to 15.00 and 17.00 to 22.30. 
(e)  On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 10.00 to 23.00. 
(f)  On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12.00 to 22.30. 
(g)  On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the 

start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours 
on the following day, 00.00 midnight on 31st December). 

 
(ii) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above 

and on Christmas day, between 15:00 and 19:00 to persons taking table meals in 
the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the service of such 
persons and for consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as an 
ancillary to his meal. For other purposes or in other parts of the premises the 
hours set out above shall continue to apply. 

 
Monday to Saturday 
 

(iii)      (a) Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 1 a.m. in the morning following 
weekdays to persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the 
premises usually set apart for the service of such persons and for 
consumption by that person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to 
his meal. 

 
(b)  The alcohol must be sold or supplied at a time before (i) the provision of 

entertainment by persons present and performing or (ii) the provision of 
substantial refreshment, has ended. For other purposes or in other parts 
of the premises the hours set out above shall continue to apply.  

 

page 128



(c)  This condition does not authorise any sale or supply to any person 
admitted to the premises either after midnight or less than half an hour 
before the entertainment is due to end, except in accordance with 
condition number 7.ii above 

 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

 
(a)  during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of 

the alcohol on the premises; 
 

(b)  during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the 
alcohol from the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an 
open vessel; 

 
(c)  during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of 

the alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the 
alcohol was supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals;   

 
(d)  the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any 

person residing in the licensed premises; 
 

(e)  the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch 
by the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

 
(f)  the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the 

trade or club; 
 

(g)  the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in 
which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the 
Secretary of State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's 
naval, military or air forces; 

 
(h)  the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;  

 
(i)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private 

friends of a person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at 
his own expense, or the consumption of  alcohol by persons so supplied;  

 
(j)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons 

employed there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder 
of the licence, or the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is 
supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or 
in charge of the business on the premises. 

 
 

In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed 
as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on 
the premises. 

 
14. No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the 

permitted hours unless one of the following applies: 
 

(a)  He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
(b)  He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
(c)  He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the 

premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient 
means of access or egress. 

page 129



(d)  The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and 
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence 
is ancillary. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
15. All emergency exits shall remain unlocked whilst the premises are open to the public. 
 
16. Capacity for Late Night Refreshment is 100 persons including staff. 
 
17. All waste to be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the schedule collection times 
 
18. The highway and public spaces in the vicinity of the premises are kept free of litter from 

the premises at all material times to the satisfaction of the Council. 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
19.  Live Music shall be limited to a maximum of two performers. 
 
20. There shall be no takeaway service between 03:00 and 05:00 hours. 
 (Proposed for deletion) 
 
21. After 23:00 hours all windows and doors to be kept closed except for the immediate 

access and egress of persons. 
 
22. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 

structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
23. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and leave the area quietly. 
 
24. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
25. No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas between 

2300 hours and 0800 hours. 
 
26. The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the premises, 

including gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge, shall be swept and or washed, 
and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse 
storage arrangements. 

 
27. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer.  All entry and 
exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any 
light condition.  The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open 
for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises.  All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.  
Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
28. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public.  
This staff member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested. 

 

page 130



29. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 
all times when the premises is open.  This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents in the vicinity. 

 
30. All service of late night refreshment shall be by waiter or waitress service only and to 

seated customers. 
 
31. A proof of age scheme, such as Challenge 21, shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification 
cards, such as a driving licence or passport. 

 
32. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol.  The log should include the date 

and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale.  
The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised 
officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises are open. 

 
33. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: 
 

a. all crimes reported to the venue 
b. all ejections of patrons 
c. any complaints received 
d. any incidents of disorder 
e. seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
f. any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment 
g. any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
h. any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
34. In the restaurant area children under 18 shall be accompanied by a responsible adult 

after 23:00 hours. 
 
  

page 131



           Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity  
 

 
 
Resident count: 159 
 

page 132



Premises within 50 metres of: 42 Cranbourn Street 
 

p / n  Name of Premises Premises Address Licensed Hours 

74755 Cafe Fiori 
42 Cranbourn Street 
London WC2H 7JH 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
05:00  
Sunday; 12:00 - 05:00 

74765 
Cork And Bottle Wine 
Bar 

Basement 44-46 
Cranbourn Street London 
WC2H 7AN 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

26273 Noodle Stop 
Ground 44-46 Cranbourn 
Street London WC2H 7AN 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
05:00  
Sunday; 12:00 - 05:00 

28699 Rimini Coffee Bar 

Basement And Ground 
Floor West 47 Cranbourn 
Street London WC2H 7AN 

Cafe Rimini: 
Monday to Thursday;  
10:00 - 02:00  
Friday to Saturday;  
10:00 - 04:00 
Sunday; 12:00 - 02:00 
Expresso Bar: 
Monday to Thursday; 10:00 
- 02:00  
Friday to Saturday;  
10:00 - 03:00  
Sunday; 12:00 - 01:30  

23499 
Bear & Staff Public 
House 

10-12 Bear Street London 
WC2H 7AS 

First Floor Only:  
Monday to Saturday;  
07:00 - 00:30  
Sunday; 07:00 - 00:00  
 
Monday to Thursday;  
07:00 - 23:30 
Friday to Saturday;  
07:00 - 00:00  
Sunday; 07:00 - 22:30 
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 07:00 - 00:00 

12373 Wyndhams Theatre 

Wyndhams Theatre 
Charing Cross Road 
London WC2H 0DA 

Monday to Sunday;  
09:00 - 01:00 

35427 Not Recorded 

Unit 1 Leicester Square 
Station Charing Cross 
Road London WC2H 0AP 

Monday to Sunday;  
07:00 - 22:00 

26235 The Zoo Bar And Club 

Basement And Ground 
Floor Cameo House 13-17 
Bear Street London WC2H 
7AQ 

Monday to Saturday;  
09:00 - 02:30 (Ground Floor 
Only) 
Monday to Saturday;  
09:00 - 03:30  
Sunday; 09:00 - 01:00  
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 09:00 - 02:30 

41585 Hippodrome Casino 

The Hippodrome 10 - 14 
Cranbourn Street London 
WC2H 7JH 

Monday to Sunday; 00:01 - 
00:00 

page 133



48118 K. S. Food And Wine 

Ground Floor 35 Charing 
Cross Road London WC2H 
0AT 

Monday to Sunday; 08:00 - 
05:00 

23134 The Brewmaster 
37 Cranbourn Street 
London WC2H 7AD 

Monday to Thursday; 08:00 
- 23:30  
Friday to Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:30  
Sunday; 08:00 - 23:00 

86006 PizzaExpress 
43 Charing Cross Road 
London WC2H 0AP 

Monday to Saturday; 07:00 - 
00:30  
Sunday; 07:00 - 00:00 
Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 07:00 - 00:30 

71395 Zoo Too 
18 Bear Street London 
WC2H 7AS 

Monday to Wednesday; 
10:00 - 00:00  
Thursday; 10:00 - 01:00  
Friday to Saturday;  
10:00 - 02:00  
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 

18404 Gaby's Continental Bar 
30 Charing Cross Road 
London WC2H 0DE 

Monday to Saturday;  
10:00 - 00:30  
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

 

page 134



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5 July 2018 
   

Licensing Ref No:  18/05005/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Woods Quay 
Savoy Pier 
Victoria Embankment 
London 
SW1A 2HR 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Mrs Shannon Pring 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 3217 
Email: spring3@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
  

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 135

Agenda Item 5



1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

2 May 2018 

Applicant: Woods River Cruises Limited 
Premises: Woods Quay 
Premises address: Savoy Pier 

Victoria Embankment 
London 
SW1A 2HR 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

No 

Premises description: 
 

The applicant proposes to operate a new reception pier 
and berthing pontoon that will serve three vessels. The 
pier and pontoon are newly constructed; the pier will 
consist of three rooms that include a bar and a tasting 
kitchen that will both be available for private hire. The 
remaining area will be used as a reception area for 
Woods River Cruises Ltd customers.  
 

Premises licence 
history: 
 

This is an application for new premises licence and 
therefore no licence history exists.   
 

Applicant submissions: There are no submissions from the applicant.  
Current planning 
permission:  

The premises benefits from the following planning 
permission (15/06373/FULL) for the continued use of 
floating pontoon with access from Victoria Embankment 
for embarkation and landing of passengers on the River 
Thames until December 2017.  

 
1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 

 
Regulated Entertainment: Live Music, 
Recorded Music and Anything of a 
similar description 

Indoors, outdoors or both Both 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 
End: 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

At the start of British Summertime, and on that day only, 
the terminal hour for all licensable activities shall be 
extended by one hour.  
 
On New Year’s Eve from the end of normal permitted 
hours until the start of permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day.  

 
  

page 136



 
Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both 

 
Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

 
Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 
End: 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

At the start of British Summertime, and on that day only, 
the terminal hour for all licensable activities shall be 
extended by one hour.  
 
On New Year’s Eve from the end of normal permitted 
hours until the start of permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day. 

 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 

 
On sales 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 
End: 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

At the start of British Summertime, and on that day only, 
the terminal hour for all licensable activities shall be 
extended by one hour.  
 
On New Year’s Eve from the end of normal permitted 
hours until the start of permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day. 

 
Hours premises are open to the public 
 
Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 

 
Start: 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 06:00 
End: 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 02:00 
Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

At the start of British Summertime, and on that day only, 
the terminal hour for all licensable activities shall be 
extended by one hour.  
 
On New Year’s Eve from the end of normal permitted 
hours until the start of permitted hours on New Year’s 
Day. 

 
  

page 137



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service 

Representative:  PC Sandy Russell 
Received:  
 

15 May 2018 

  
Dear Mr Woods, 
 
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan 
Police, as a responsible authority, will be objecting to this application at this stage in the 
application process. The venue is situated outside Westminster’s Cumulative Impact Area, 
however it is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the Licensing 
Objectives. 
 
Myself, my colleague PC Boon and Sally Fabbricatore from EH would like to arrange a 
meeting to discuss this application further, we would also like to visit the premises. Please 
can this be arranged over the next couple of weeks? 
 
I am free on the following dates: 24/25 May or 6/7/8/14/15 June. 
 
Further correspondence between the Police and the Applicant:  
 
Thank you for taking the time to arrange the meeting and link up with us this morning, we 
found the meeting very useful. 
 
I have gone through the application and the conditions proposed by yourselves are 
acceptable. We do not feel it supports the Westminster Licensing policy document for there to 
be any alcohol sales prior to 08.00hrs, I have proposed a suitable condition below. We also, 
propose the following further conditions for your client to consider.  
 
Conditions proposed by the Police can be found at Appendix 4.  
 
 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Mrs Sally Fabbricatore 
 

Received: 
 

18 May 2018 

 
I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above premises. 
 
The applicant has submitted the following plans, drawing number 12097/1100 rev 03 
and dated 03/08/16 (pontoon and pier)  and drawing number 067-PR001 rev A and 
dated April 18 (pier rooms).  
 
This representation is based on the plans and Operating Schedule submitted.   
 
The applicant is seeking the following licensable activities:  
 

page 138



1. The Supply of Alcohol for consumption on the premises Monday to Sunday 
06:00-02:00 hours.  

 
2. To provide the following Regulated Entertainment both indoors and outdoors: 

Live Music, Recorded Music, and anything of a similar description on Monday to 
Sunday 06:00-02:00 hours. 
 

3. To provide Late Night Refreshment both indoors and outdoors Monday to 
Sunday 23:00-02:00 hours.  
 

4. To allow the above provisions for an extra hour on the start of British Summer 
Time and to allow from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve and New 
Year’s Day.  
 
 

I wish to make the following representations in relation to the above application: 
 

1. The Supply of Alcohol may have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public 
Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public Safety. 
 

2. The provision of Regulated Entertainment may have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public Safety. 
 

3. The provision of Late Night Refreshment may have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance in the area.  
 

4. The non-standard timings may have the likely effect of causing an increase in 
Public Nuisance in the area.  

 
 
The applicant has proposed conditions within the operating schedule which are being 
considered.  Further conditions may be proposed by Environmental Health in order to 
help prevent Public Nuisance and protect Public Safety.   
 
The granting of the new Premises Licence as presented may have the likely effect 
of causing an increase in Public Nuisance in the area and may impact on Public 
Safety. 
 

 
 
  

page 139



 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 
Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below 
in this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out 
below in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject 
to other relevant policies. 

Policy PB1 applies: Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated 
that the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1. 

Policy FFP1 applies: Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated 
that the proposal meets relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1. 

 
 
 
4. Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

 
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected 
characteristics as age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
  

page 140



 
5. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Mrs Shannon Pring 

Senior Licensing Officer 
Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 3217 

Email: spring3@westminster.gov.uk 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 
 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Metropolitan Police Service representation 15 May 2018 
5 Email from Environmental Health to Applicant  06 June 2018 

6 Environmental Health Service Representation 18 May 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 141



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 
The proposed plans are enclosed.   

page 142



page 143



page 144



Applicant Supporting Documents       Appendix 2 
 
There are no supporting documents received from the Applicant.   

page 145



Premises History         Appendix 3 
 
 

There is no licence or appeal history for the remises.  

page 146



 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence 
subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed 
as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an 
interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service 
but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not 
necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which 
the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 147



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 

in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 
is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 
or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For 
premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

page 148



 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol 

under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall 
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest 
penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 
the second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9.  Alcohol shall only be sold for consumption by persons attending:  

(1) a pre-booked ticketed event; 
(2) bone fide private function or event to which members of the public are not 
admitted 
(3) customers of Woods River Cruises Ltd 

 

page 149



10.  Training for every staff team member and management so the team are aware of 
the premises licence and requirements to meet the four licensing objectives.  

 
11.  Licensing law training for staff, focussing particularly on:  
 Preventing underage sales/Challenge 25; 
 Not permitting violent/anti-social behaviour; 
 Not permitting drunk/disorderly behaviour; 
 Zero tolerance drugs policy.  
 
12.  The premises shall install and maintain a suitable CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and 
exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering 
in any light conditions. The CCTV system shall continually record while the 
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers 
remain on the premises. All recordings shall by stored for a minimum period of 
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout 
the entire 31 day period.  

 
13.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the P9olice. It must be completed 
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:  

 (a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
 

14.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of 
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
15. As soon as possible, and in any event within 1 month from the grant of this 

licence, the premises shall join the local Pubwatch or other local crime reduction 
scheme approved by the police and local radio scheme if available. 

 
16.  All external emergency exit doors shall be fitted with sensor alarms and visible 

indicators to alert staff when the doors have been opened.  
 
17.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, 
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.  

 
18.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, 

free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance 
with the plans provided.  

 
19.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a 

key, code, card or similar means.  

page 150



 
20.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.  
 
21.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between (23.00) hours and (08.00) hours on the following 
day.  

 
22.  A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the 

only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification 
cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS 
Hologram.  

 
23.  A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should 

include the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff 
who refused the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by 
the police or an authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises 
is open.   

  
 
Conditions proposed by the Police 
 
24.  All staff engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or controlling 

queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests.  
 
25.  There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 23.00hrs except 

for patrons permitted to temporarily leave the premises to smoke.  
 
26.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  
 
27.  a) All drinking vessels used in the venue shall be strengthened/toughened glass or 

polycarbonate. All drinks in glass bottles are to be decanted into 
toughened/strengthened glass or polycarbonate containers or 
strengthened/toughened glass/polycarbonate carafes prior to being served, with the 
exception of champagne or bottles of spirits with a minimum size of 70cl. Staff shall 
clear all empty champagne and spirit bottles promptly from the licensed area. 
Customers shall not be permitted to leave their table carrying any such glass bottles 
or drink directly from the bottle.  

 
b) Notwithstanding a) above, with the written agreement of the Westminster 
Licensing Police, a copy of which will be held at the premises reception, glass 
drinking vessels may be used for private or pre-booked events.  

 
28.  There shall be a minimum of 1 SIA licensed door supervisor on duty at the entrance to 

the premises from 18.00hrs to close. Prior to and after this time door staff numbers will 
be at least a 1:100 ratio unless decided otherwise by a risk assessment conducted by a 
member of the venue’s management team. The use of door staff shall only be required 
whilst the premises are open for licensable activities. 

 
29.  The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption within Room 3 (on the Savoy Pier, 

shown on the plans – the food tasting area) and on the Berthing Pier shall be 
restricted to alcohol consumed by persons who are seated. Within these areas the 
supply of alcohol will be by waiter or waitress service only.  

 

page 151



30.  Alcohol sales between the hours of 08.00hrs and 10.00hrs shall be consumed 
ancillary to a substantial meal. 

 
 
 
Conditions proposed by Environmental Health and agreed by the applicant to 
form part of the operating schedule 
 
31.  No licensable activities shall take at the reception pontoon until the capacity of the 

reception pontoon has been determined by the Environmental Health Consultation 
Team and the licensing authority has replaced this condition on the licence with a 
condition detailing the capacity so determined.  

 
32.  The number of persons permitted at any one time (excluding staff) in the in the 

reception pontoon shall not exceed TBC persons.  
 
33.  A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly 

available at all times the premises are open. This telephone number is to be made 
available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

 
34.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of 
the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
35.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises 

after 23:00. 
 
36.  A Noise Management Plan shall be produced for events which use the outside 

area beyond 23:00 hours and followed by the responsible person. This shall be 
made available on request to the Responsible Authorities and kept for at least one 
year.  

 
37.  A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level 

determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental 
Health Service, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents 
or businesses. The operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by 
key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the Environmental health 
Services and access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence 
Holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the 
Environmental health Service. No alteration or modification to any existing sound 
system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised officer of 
the Environmental Health Service. No additional sound generating equipment shall 
be used on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter device.  

 
38.  In the outside areas there shall be no amplified live music beyond 23:00 hours.  
 
39.  No music, whether live or recorded, should be audible at the agreed location (to 

be inserted on the works clearance visit) beyond 23:00 hours.  
 
40.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous. 
 

page 152



41.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open 
other than by an approved device. 

 
42.  All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after (23:00) hours, except for 

the immediate access and egress of persons. 
 
43.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at 
which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
 
  

page 153



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity  Appendix 5 
 

 
 
 
Resident count: 0 
 

page 154



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5 July 2018 
   

Licensing Ref No:  18/04360/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  Rules Restaurant 
34-35 Maiden Lane 
London 
WC2E 7LB 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Mrs Shannon Pring 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 3217 
Email: spring3@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
  

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 155

Agenda Item 6



1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

20 April 2018 

Applicant: Rules Restaurant Ltd 
Premises: Rules Restaurant 
Premises address: 34-35 Maiden Lane 

London 
WC2E 7LB 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

The premises currently operates as a restaurant.  

Variation description: The applicant seeks to:  
1. Vary the layout of the premises in accordance with the 

submitted plans. Full details of the change in layout can 
be found in Section 1-C of the report.  

2. Add the conditions detailed in Section 1-D of the report.  
 

Premises licence 
history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since 2005. Full details of 
the premises licence history can be found at Appendix 3 of 
the report.  
 

Applicant submissions: There are no submissions from the Applicant.  
 
1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 

 
Regulated Entertainment 
 
Playing of Recorded Music, Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music 
or other entertainment of a like kind for consideration and with a view to profit 
 
 Current  

Hours 
Proposed  

Hours 
Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 
Monday 

Unrestricted No change 
Ground Floor, 
First Floor and 
Second Floor 

No change 

Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

 
  

page 156



 
Late night refreshment 
 
Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Indoors No change 
 Current  

Hours 
Proposed  

Hours 
Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 
Monday 

23:00 00:30 No change 
Ground Floor, 
First Floor and 
Second Floor 

No change 

Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 23:00 00:00 
Seasonal 
variations 

Current: Proposed: 
The terminal hour for late night 
refreshment on New Year's Eve is 
extended to 05:00 on New Year's 
Day. 

No change 

 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 
On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

Both No change 
 Current  

Hours 
Proposed  

Hours 
Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 
Monday 

10:00 00:00 No change 
Ground Floor, 
First Floor and 
Second Floor 

No change 

Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 12:00 23:30 
Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 
Alcohol may be sold or supplied:  
(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 
Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 10:00 to 23:00 
(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or 
New Year's Eve, 12:00 to 22:30 
(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30  
(d) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 
to 22:30  
(e) On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 
10:00 to 23:00  
(f) On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 
22:30  
(g) On New Year's Eve from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start 
of permitted hours on the following day (or, if 
there are no permitted hours on the following 
day, midnight on 31st December). 

No change 

page 157



(ii) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour 
following the hours set out above to persons 
taking table meals in the premises in a part of 
the premises usually set apart for the service of 
such persons and for consumption by such a 
person in that part of the premises as an 
ancillary to his meal. For other purposes or in 
other parts of the premises the hours set out 
above shall continue to apply. 

No change 

 
Hours premises are open to the public 
 
 Current  

Hours 
Proposed  

Hours 
Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 
Monday 

10:00 00:30 No change 
Ground Floor, 
First Floor and 
Second Floor 

No change 

Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 12:00 23:30 

 
1-C Layout alteration 

 
To vary the layout of the premises in accordance with plans (drawing numbers): RR PL 03 F 
Rev F Basement and Ground Floor, RR PL 04 F Rev I First and Second Floor and RR PL 05 
F Rev D Third and Fourth Floor.  
 
The proposed changes to the layout comprise of: 
 

• Removal of building services from the first floor rear area 
• Incorporating new Lounge 
• Improved means of escape from the rear area on the first floor through the men’s 

toilet. 
 

 
1-D Conditions being added 

 
1. A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  
 

2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 
 

3. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 

page 158



member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 
 

4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  

(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system. 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
5. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of construction new plans 

shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing 
Authority and this condition will be removed. 

 
  

page 159



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority (Withdrawn) 

Representative:  Ms Roxsana Haq 
Received:  
 

17 May 2018 

  
I write in relation to the application submitted for the Variation of a Premises Licence for Rules 
Restaurant, 34-35 Maiden Lane. 
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under 
the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 

• Prevention of Public Nuisance  
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
• Public Safety  
• Protection of children from harm  

 
This variation application seeks the following: 
 

• Vary the layout of the premises and increase the licensable area on the first floor 
• Add conditions 

 
The premises is located within the cumulative impact area and as such a number of policy 
points must be considered, namely CIP1, PB2, and HRS1. 
 
The Licensing Authority has concerns with this application as there is a substantial increase 
in the licensable area on the first floor. The current premises licence does not restrict the 
operation of the premises as a restaurant and as such this application must be considered 
under policy PB2. The current permitted hours of licensable activities exceed Westminster’s 
core hours and therefore it is of concern that this application seeks to create an additional bar 
area in the cumulative impact area that would operate outside of the core hours. Paragraph 
2.5.23 of the Councils Statement of Licensing Policy 2016, states “the Licensing Authority 
considers that the grant of variations or new licences for pubs and bars in the cumulative 
impact area should be limited to exceptional circumstances”.  Therefore it is for the applicant 
to demonstrate that this application can be regarded as an exception to policy. 
 
The Licensing Authority would encourage the applicant to consider the Councils model 
condition 66 for the lounge area on the first floor as designated in the proposed plans. 
 
Model Condition 66:  
The premises shall only operate as a restaurant  

(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 

premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable 
crockery,  

(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption,  

(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and  

page 160



(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons 
is ancillary to taking such meals. Notwithstanding this condition customers are 
permitted to take from the premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine 
supplied ancillary to their meal. 

 
Further discussions will be held with the applicants prior to the hearing and any further 
submissions will be forwarded on for Members information.  
 
Please accept this as a formal representation.  
 
Further correspondence between the Applicant and the Licensing Authority 
 
Further to the email below from PC Toby Janes, I write to you in relation to your 
representation on the above application. 
 
Having reviewed the representations from the Police, Environmental Health and the Licensing 
Authority, my client has agreed to offer the following conditions to apply to the new ‘Lounge’ 
area:- 
 
Conditions to apply to the customer area labelled “Lounge” on the first floor plan:- 
 

1. The supply of alcohol shall only be to persons seated. 
 

2. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
 

3. Food and non intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available at all 
times while alcohol is sold. 

 
As you will have seen, Toby has confirmed that these additional conditions satisfy the 
concerns of the Police and they have therefore withdrawn their representation. 
 
In addition to these conditions, I would like to highlight that the premises capacity is dictated 
by the Fire Risk Assessment. The capacity is restricted by the means of escape and the 
staircases, which cannot be altered due to the building being listed. As such, the addition of 
this new area will not increase the capacity of the premises and my client will continue to 
operate within the limit set by their Fire Risk Assessment. 
 
Ian Watson has been involved in the application process since the pre-consultation stage and 
is fully aware of this. Should you require further clarification can I suggest that you liaise with 
Ian in the first instance.  
 
In light of the above, and the fact that the other Responsible Authorities who submitted 
representations are now satisfied that the proposed changes will not add to cumulative 
impact, I hope that these additional proposed conditions are sufficient for the Licensing 
Authority to withdraw their representation, and I would be grateful if you could confirm. 
 
Further correspondence between the Licensing Authority and the Applicant 
 
Thank you for your email. Following on from your submissions the Licensing Authority 
welcome your conditions to apply to the customer area labelled “Lounge” on the first floor 
plan namely: 
 
1.         The supply of alcohol shall only be to persons seated. 
 
2.         The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 

page 161



 
3.         Food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available at all 

times while alcohol is sold. 
 
The above conditions do remove the vertical drinking element concerned with this application 
however this doesn’t bring the application in line with the Councils restaurant policy RN2. 
Therefore the application will have to be considered under PB2 and HRS1 as the application 
seeks to create an additional bar area in the cumulative impact area that would operate 
outside of the core hours. 
 
As such please accept this as a formal notification that the Licensing Authority will maintain 
representation on this application. 
 
On 27 June 2018, the Licensing Authority have withdrawn their representation as they 
are satisfied that the addition of the condition relating to the ‘lounge’ area on the first 
floor and as there will be no increase in capacity therefore the variation will not add to 
cumulative impact.  
 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Mr Ian Watson 
 

Received: 
 

18 May 2018 

 
I refer to the application for variation of the Premises Licence. 
 
This representation is based on the plan and information provided within operating schedule. 
 
The applicant is seeking the following variation 
 
1. To add an area on the first floor for licensable activities. 
2. To add conditions. 
 

I wish to make the following representation. 

1. The additional area of the first floor needs to be assessed against its impact on Public Safety. 
2. No objection. 
 
Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn) 

Representative: PC Toby Janes 
 

Received: 
 

17 May 2018 

 
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, 
as a Responsible Authority, make a representation against the above application. 
  
It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the licensing objectives in relation 
to the prevention of crime and disorder as there are insufficient conditions within the operating 
schedule. 
  
The venue is situated in the West End cumulative impact area, a locality where there is 
traditionally high crime and disorder. We have concerns that this application will cause further 
policing problems in an already demanding area. 

page 162



 
You have offered a number of conditions which go some way to satisfy Police in terms of crime 
and disorder. However the additional licensed area will increase the capacity of the venue and 
is likely to add to the cumulative impact.  
 
Further correspondence between the Applicant and the Police  
 
Further to our recent telephone conversation, I have now discussed your representation to 
the above application with my client. 
  
You kindly confirmed that there is no history of crime and disorder associated with the 
premises; however my client appreciates the location of the premises within the West End 
Cumulative Impact Area. My client is therefore happy to offer the following conditions to apply 
to the new ‘Lounge’ area to which this application relates: 
  
Conditions to apply to the customer area labelled “Lounge” on the first floor plan:- 
  

1. The supply of alcohol shall only be to persons seated. 
  

2. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
  

3. Food and non intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available at all 
times while alcohol is sold. 

  
We believe in light of our discussions that the above measures will satisfy your concerns. 
  
As such I hope these additional proposed conditions are sufficient for you to withdraw your 
representation, and I would be grateful if you could confirm. 
 
The Police are satisfied with the additions conditions proposed by the Applicant and 
have therefore withdrawn their representation.  
 

 
 
 
  

page 163



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 
Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 

this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary 
to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in 
this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies 

Policy CIP1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises, 
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy 
HRS1. 
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

Policy PB2 applies Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they will 
not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 
 
4. Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

 
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected 
characteristics as age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

page 164



5. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans – proposed and current 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Mrs Shannon Pring 

Senior Licensing Officer 
Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 3217 

Email: spring3@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 
 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Application Form  20 April 2018 
5 Licensing Authority representation 17 May 2018 
6 Environmental Health Service representation 18 May 2018 
7 Metropolitan Police Service representation 17 May 2018 
8 Correspondence between the Applicant and 

the Licensing Authority 
07 June 2018 

9 Correspondence between the Licensing 
Authority and the Applicant 

11 June 2018 

10 Correspondence between the Applicant and 
the Police 

05 June 2018 

11 Correspondence between the Police and the 
Applicant 

06 June 2018 

12 Correspondence from the Licensing Authority 
to the Applicant 

27 June 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 

page 165



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 
  
The proposed and current premises plans are enclosed.   

page 166



Proposed plans

page 167



page 168



page 169



D a v i d   Q u i g l e y   A r c h i t e c t s
2  A l b e m a r l e  W a y,   C l e r k e n w e l l ,   L o n d o n   E C 1 V  4 J B

Tel: 020 7251 1880   Fax: 020 7251 1889   E-Mail: quigley.dqa@virgin.net

This drawing is copyright. Do not scale from the drawing work only to f igured dimensions. The
contractor is to verify all dimensions onsite before commencing work. All errors and omissions
are to be reported to the Architect. The drawing shall be read in conjunction with all relevant

drawings and specif ications. If in doubt, ask.

Title:

Client:Job: Mr J MayhewRules Restuarant

RR/PL/03                    BAugust 20111:100 @ A3

Existing Basement & Ground  Floor
Date: Drwg No:Scale: Rev:

HOT KITCHEN

COLD KITCHEN

VAULTS

DRY STORE

BRATT PANSDISH WASHING

PATISSERIECOLD ROOM

BASEMENT

35

34

EXISTING BASEMENT & GROUND FLOOR PLAN

ROOFLIGHT OVER

ROOFLIGHT OVER

ROOFLIGHT OVER

DINING

DINING

DINING

DINING

34

35

GROUND FLOOR

FIRE ESCAPE

MAIN ENTRANCE

BOUNDARY OF RESTAURANT PREMISES

I

I I

I

I

I

H
HT

I
N

H
HT

H
HT

H

H

I

I N

H
HT

H
HT

H
HT

I
I

I

I

S140

S141

S134

M137

S133

S135

M138
S142

S136

M134

S132

M139

S131

M135

M136

S130

S129

S128

M30

M32

S20

M29

S17

M28

S18
S25

S24

S23

H

O
N

S22

M34

S21

M33

I

M

I

M H
H

H

M

M

M133

S137

S124/M129 S125/M130
S127/M132

S15/M24

M27

M26

S14/M23

S16/M25

S26/M36

S126/M131

R

R

FAR

I
N

I

H
HT

O
N

MR

FAR

KEY FOR FIRE INSTALLATION

The location and type of any f ire safety and any other safety equipment is shown as at present. 
This may be varied from time to time with the agreement of the Fire Off icer or after a f ire risk 
assessment.

Area where licensable activities are to take place.

ANSEL FIRE SURPRESSANT SYSTEM OVER RANGE

Rev A- General update & fire installation added. July 11

FIRE ALARM BREAK GLASS 
CONTACT 

IONISATION SMOKE DETECTOR COMBINED SMOKE DETECTOR 
AND ELECTRONIC SOUNDER

FIRE ALARM REPEATER PANEL

ELECTRONIC SOUNDERFIXED TEMPERATURE HEAT 
DETECTOR (HT DENOTES HIGH 
TEMPERATURE)

FIRE ALARM OUTPUT TYPE INTERFACE (N 
DENOTES NUMBER OF WAYS)

FIRE EXIT

FIRE BLANKET

MAGNETIC DOORS RETAINEKMAGNETIC DOOR RELAY 

DOOR ALARM UNIT
FIRE ALARM INPUT TYPE INTERFACE (N 
DENOTES NUMBER OF WAYS)

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

Rev B- Fire extinguishers added.     Aug 11

Current plans

page 170



D a v i d   Q u i g l e y   A r c h i t e c t s
2  A l b e m a r l e  W a y,   C l e r k e n w e l l ,   L o n d o n   E C 1 V  4 J B

Tel: 020 7251 1880   Fax: 020 7251 1889   E-Mail: quigley.dqa@virgin.net

This drawing is copyright. Do not scale from the drawing work only to f igured dimensions. The
contractor is to verify all dimensions onsite before commencing work. All errors and omissions
are to be reported to the Architect. The drawing shall be read in conjunction with all relevant

drawings and specif ications. If in doubt, ask.

Title:

Client:Job: Mr J MayhewRules Restuarant

RR/PL/04      CAugust 20111:100 @ A3

Existing First & Second Floor
Date: Drwg No:Scale: Rev:

34

35
STORE

LADIES TOILET

GENTS TOILET

SERVERY

CHARLES DICKENS ROOMEDWARD VII ROOM

FIRST FLOOR

DI
SP

LA
Y

DISPLAY

GRAHAM GREENE ROOM

STORE

KITCHEN

35

34

SECOND FLOOR

EXISTING 1ST FLOOR & 2ND FLOOR PLANST ND

S15/M24

M

I

I

M

I

H

I

I

I

I

H

O
N

S118/M120

S117/M119

M121 S123/M128

S122

M122

M124

S119/M123

S120

M125

S121/M127

S10/M16

S11/M19

S13/M22

M21

S12/M20

M17

H

I

I

I

H

I

I

H

I

M

I

S110/M110

S111/M111

S115/M116

S116/M117

M118

S114/M115

S112/M113

M112

S113/M114

S07/M12

M11

S27S09/M15

S08/M13

M14

M M

M

M

M

R

I
N

I

H
HT

O
N

MR

FAR

KEY FOR FIRE INSTALLATION

The location and type of any f ire safety and any other safety equipment is shown as at present. 
This may be varied from time to time with the agreement of the Fire Off icer or after a f ire risk 
assessment.

Area where licensable activities are to take place.

JOHN BETJEMAN ROOM

FIRE ALARM BREAK GLASS 
CONTACT 

IONISATION SMOKE DETECTOR COMBINED SMOKE DETECTOR 
AND ELECTRONIC SOUNDER

FIRE ALARM REPEATER PANEL

ELECTRONIC SOUNDERFIXED TEMPERATURE HEAT 
DETECTOR (HT DENOTES HIGH 
TEMPERATURE)

FIRE ALARM OUTPUT TYPE INTERFACE (N 
DENOTES NUMBER OF WAYS)

FIRE EXIT

FIRE BLANKET

MAGNETIC DOORS RETAINEKMAGNETIC DOOR RELAY 

DOOR ALARM UNIT
FIRE ALARM INPUT TYPE INTERFACE (N 
DENOTES NUMBER OF WAYS)

FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 

Rev A- General update & fire installation added. July 11
Rev B- 2nd floor fire doors to hoist changed.     Aug 11
Rev C- Fire extinguishers added.     Aug 11

page 171



Applicant Supporting Documents       Appendix 2 
 

There are no further submissions from the Applicant. 

page 172



Appendix 3 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 
 
 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

05/05650/LIPC Conversion to 
Licensing Act 2003 

30/08/2005 Granted under 
delegated authrity 

06/09063/WCCMAP Master Licence 30/06/2006 Granted under 
delegated authority 

11/07975/LIPT Application to transfer 
the premises licence 

18/08/2011 Granted under 
delegated authority 

11/08783/LIPVM Application for a minor 
variation 

20/09/2011 Granted under 
delegated authority 

15/00660/LIPT Application to transfer 
the premises licence 

15/07/2015 Granted under 
delegated authority 

18/04360/LIPV Current application   

 
There is no appeal history 

page 173



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence 
subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed 
as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an 
interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service 
but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not 
necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 

carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation 
to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 

page 174



(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 

on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered 
to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the 
effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason 
of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request 

to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure 

that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 
 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

page 175



(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer 
of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the 
supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, 
and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer 
to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

page 176



 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of 
the premises by specified enactment 
 
9. Alcohol may be sold or supplied:       
 

(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 
10:00 to 23:00 
(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12:00 to 22:30 
(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(d) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30 
(e) On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 10:00 to 23:00 
(f) On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(g) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted 
hours on the following day, midnight on 31st December). 
 
(ii) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out 
above to persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises 
usually set apart for the service of such persons and for consumption by such a 
person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. For other 
purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall continue 
to apply. 

 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
 

(a) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises; 
 
(b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol 
from the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
 
(c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was 
supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals; 
 
(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person 
residing in the licensed premises; 
 

page 177



(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by 
the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 
 
(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade 
or club; 
 
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in 
which the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the 
Secretary of State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, 
military or air forces; 
 
(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;  
 
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of 
a person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own 
expense, or the consumption of  alcohol by persons so supplied;  
 
(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed 
there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or 
the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of 
their employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 

 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the   premises shall be construed 
as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on 
the premises. 
 
10.   No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the 

permitted hours unless one of the following applies: 
 

(a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
 
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
 
(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from  some part of the 
premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient 
means of access or egress. 
 
(d) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted 
and intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the 
licence is ancillary. 

 
In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption 
of intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set 
apart for the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an 
ancillary to their table meals.  
 
11. The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year's Eve is extended to 

05:00 on New Year's Day. 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 

page 178



12.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 

13.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 

14.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
15.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  
a) all crimes reported to the venue 
b) all ejections of patrons 
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
d) any incidents of disorder 
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
f) any faults in the CCTV system. 
g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
16. Where the premises layout has changed during the course of construction new plans 

shall be provided to the Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing 
Authority and this condition will be removed. 

Conditions to apply to the customer area labelled “Lounge” on the first floor plan 
only:  
  
17.  The supply of alcohol shall only be to persons seated. 
 
Condition as proposed has been agreed by the Police 

  
18.  The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only. 
 
Condition as proposed has been agreed by the Police 

  
19.  Food and non intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available at all 

times while alcohol is sold. 
 
Condition as proposed has been agreed by the Police 
 
  

page 179



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None 
 
Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority 
 
20.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant  

(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 

premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable 
crockery,  

(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption,  

(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and  
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 

persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons 
is ancillary to taking such meals.  

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

page 180



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity  Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident count: 86 
 
  

page 181



Premises within 75metres of: Rules Restaurant, 34-35 Maiden Lane 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

16/01066/LIPCH Condesa Tapas 
Bar 

15 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7NA 

Cafe Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 22:30 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

17/01116/LIPDPS Fire And Stone 31-32 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7JS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Sunday; 00:00 - 

00:00 

18/04101/LIPDPS Gourmet Burger 
Kitchen 

13-14 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 22:50 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/12562/LIPDPS Sticks 'n' Sushi 11 Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8PY 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 22:50 

16/06315/LIPT Cafe Proper 16 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/10196/LIPCH Franco Manca 38 - 39 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7LJ 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

18/00718/LIPDPS Thai Pin 
Restaurant 

Ground Floor 7 - 
8 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

page 182



17/09679/LIPCH Da Polpo Ground Floor 6 
Maiden Lane 

London WC2E 
7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 23:00 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
09:00 - 00:30 

17/10013/LIPDPS Masons Cafe Bar Basement And 
Ground Floor 5 - 
6 Henrietta Street 

London WC2E 
8PS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 07:30 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
09:00 - 23:30 

16/12576/LIPDPS Maple Leaf Ground Floor 41 
Maiden Lane 

London WC2E 
7LJ 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 22:30 

17/11012/LIPT Mabel's 29-30 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7JS 

Night clubs and 
discos 

Wednesday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 
01:30 | Sunday to 
Tuesday; 09:00 - 

01:00 

18/01459/LIPDPS The Big Easy Lower Ground 
Floor And Ground 
Floor 12 Maiden 

Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
01:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

18/03198/LIPDPS Adelphi Theatre 411 Strand 
London WC2R 

0NS 

Theatre Monday to Friday; 
09:00 - 04:00 | 

Saturday to 
Sunday; 09:00 - 

00:00 

16/11291/LIPDPS Cinnamon 28 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7JS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/11322/LIPDPS Cinnamon 28 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7JS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 23:00 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

page 183



16/04275/LIPCH La Perla 28 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7JS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 23:00 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

18/00927/LIPDPS Covent Garden 
Grind 

42 Maiden Lane 
London WC2E 

7LJ 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 22:30 

16/01300/LIPDPS Frenchie Basement And 
Ground Floor 16 
Henrietta Street 
London WC2E 

8QH 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

18/00408/LIPV Henrietta Street 
Hotel 

15 Henrietta 
Street London 
WC2E 8QG 

Hotel, 3 star or 
under 

Not Recorded; 
XXXX - XXXX 

14/06782/LIPVM The Porterhouse 
Public House 

21-22 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

17/06583/LIPDPS Flat Iron 17-18 Henrietta 
Street London 
WC2E 8QH 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

17/08902/LIPN Host Coffee 31 Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8NA 

Cafe Monday to 
Wednesday; 

07:30 - 21:00 | 
Thursday to 

Friday; 07:30 - 
22:00 | Saturday; 

08:30 - 22:00 | 
Sunday; 10:00 - 

19:00 

06/08725/WCCMAP Covent Garden 
News 

31 Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8NA 

Shop Monday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
23:00 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 22:30 

page 184



17/05529/LIPN Not Recorded 32 Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 08:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 22:30 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
08:00 - 00:30 

18/00226/LIPCH Nell Gwynne 
Public House 

1 - 2 Bull Inn 
Court London 
WC2R 0AL 

Pub or pub 
restaurant with 

lodge 

Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

18/02458/LIPT Bella Italia 30 Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
01:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/01870/LIPN Not Recorded 38 Bedford Street 
London WC2E 

9EU 

Cafe Monday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 
23:00 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 22:30 

16/05955/LIPVM Vaudeville 
Theatre 

403-404 Strand 
London WC2R 

0NH 

Theatre Monday to 
Saturday; 09:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/10339/LIPVM Honest Burgers Basement To 
First Floor 33 
Southampton 
Street London 

WC2E 7HE 

Not Recorded Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:30 

17/14664/LIPDPS Ping Pong 23-24 Maiden 
Lane London 
WC2E 7NA 

Restaurant Monday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

18/04395/LIPRW The Diner 396 Strand 
London WC2R 

0LT 

Restaurant Monday to 
Sunday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 00:00 

page 185



18/01122/LIPDPS The Ivy Market 
Grill 

1A Henrietta 
Street London 

WC2E 8PS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 07:00 - 

00:30 | Friday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 

Saturday; 08:00 - 
01:00 | Sunday; 
08:00 - 23:30 

11/09570/LIPDPS Oddbins 395 Strand 
London WC2R 

0LP 

Shop Monday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
23:00 | Sunday; 
10:00 - 22:30 

17/15068/LIPVM All Bar One Basement And 
Ground Floor 35-
36 Bedford Street 

London WC2E 
9EN 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Not Recorded; 
XXXX - XXXX 

18/02717/LIPDPS Byron Basement To 
Ground Floors 

409 - 410 Strand 
London WC2R 

0NS 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 12:00 - 
23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 12:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

17/02037/LIPN The Frog 35 Southampton 
Street London 

WC2E 7HE 

Restaurant Monday to 
Thursday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Friday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:30 | Sunday; 
08:00 - 23:00 | 

Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
08:00 - 00:30 | 

New Year's Eve; 
XXXX - XXXX 

 

page 186



            
 City of Westminster 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   
 

   

Date:  5 July 2018 

   

Licensing Ref No:  18/05160/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Rose Bakery 
18 - 21 Haymarket 
London 
SW1Y 4DQ 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James's 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 0207 641 2751  
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 187

Agenda Item 7



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 8 May 2018 

Applicant: Dover Street Market International (Dsmi) Limited 

Premises: Rose Bakery 

Premises address: 18 - 21 Haymarket 
London 
SW1Y 4DQ 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as a Bakery and Cafe.  

Premises licence history: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence and therefore 
no history exists.  
 

Applicant submissions: None Submitted.  

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

On Sales  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 12:00 

End: 19:40 19:40 19:40 19:40 19:40 19:40 19:40 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 11:00 12:00 

End: 20:00 20:00 20:00 20:00 20:00 20:00 20:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

No applied for.  

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable. 
 

 

page 188



 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (withdrawn) 

Representative:  PC Toby Janes  
 

Received:  
 

23rd May 2018 

  
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a Responsible Authority, make a 
representation against the above application. 
 
It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the licensing objectives in relation 
to the prevention of crime and disorder as there are insufficient conditions within the operating 
schedule. 
 
The venue is situated in the West End cumulative impact area, a locality where there is 
traditionally high crime and disorder. We have concerns that this application will cause further 
policing problems in an already demanding area. 
 
You have offered a number of conditions which go some way to satisfy Police in terms of crime 
and disorder. However I would like to discuss this application in more detail.  
 
Further correspondence was received on 20th June 2018: 
 
Further to our meeting at the premises this morning, the following additional conditions are 
agreed: 
 
1. The sale of alcohol shall be ancillary to the use of the premises as a high-end bakery 
and café.  
2. The number of persons seated in the premises at any one time shall not exceed 80 
persons, excluding staff. 
3. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons who 
are seated in the premises.  
4. Condition 9 of Annex A provided with the application shall be amended to read ‘There 
shall be no self-service of alcohol’. 
 
I would be grateful if you could please confirm that these conditions are agreed and your 
representation is withdrawn. 
 
On 21st June the Metropolitan Police Service withdrew their representation: 
 
On your agreement to the additional conditions as proposed by Environmental Health, I can 
confirm Police withdraw our representation. The additional conditions offered satisfy Police in 
terms of crime and disorder and I believe bring the proposed operation in line with Policy. 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 

page 189



Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative: Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received: 
 

5th June 2018  

 
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 
 
The applicant has submitted a plan of the premises located on the third floor. 

This representation is based on the plan and operating schedule submitted. 

The applicant is seeking the following 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ the premises Monday to Saturday between 11.00 
to 19.40 hours and Sunday 12.00 to 19.40 hours. 

I wish to make the following representation 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will impact on Public Safety and have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CIA area. 

The applicant has provided additional information with the application which is being addressed 
but does not fully address the concerns of Environmental Health. 

Should you wish to discuss the matter further please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority   

Representative: Ms Roxsana Haq 
 

Received: 
 

4th June 2018  

 
I write in relation to the application submitted for a New Premises Licence for the following 
premises: Rose Bakery, 3rd Floor, 18 - 21 Haymarket, London SW1Y 4DQ 
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the 
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives: 
 
• Public Nuisance 
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
• Public Safety 
• Protection of Children from harm 
 
This application seeks the following: 
 
The supply of alcohol (on premises) 
 
Monday – Saturday: 11:00 - 19:40 
Sunday: 12:00 - 19:40 
 
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact area and as such a number of 
policy points must be considered namely PB2, RNT2, and CIP1. 
 
Currently the application falls within PB2 and as such please be aware that it is the Licensing 
Authorities policy to refuse applications in the cumulative impact areas where premises are 
being used primarily / exclusively for the supply of alcohol. Additionally, paragraph 2.5.23 of the 
council policy states that the ‘grant of new licences for pubs or bars in the Cumulative Impact 

page 190



Area should be limited to exceptional circumstances’. The list of examples of what may be 
considered an exceptional circumstance can be found at paragraphs 2.4.2 – 2.4.13 of the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
The Licensing Authority would ask that you consider adding the councils model condition 66 to 
the operating schedule on the licence to support the council’s policy relating to sale of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises. If the below conditions are adopted then the premises would 
be considered in line with the Council’s policy RNT2. Applications that fall within the remit of 
policy RNT2 and CIP1 will generally be granted subject to other policies, provided the applicant 
can demonstrate they will not add to cumulative impact within the cumulative impact area. 
The Licensing Authority proposes the following conditions: 
 

 The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 
(i) in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery, 
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and 
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such 
persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 
 
Notwithstanding this condition, customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. Food and non-
intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all parts of the 
premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 
 

 The number of persons seated in the premises at any one time shall not exceed xx 
persons excluding staff. 
 
We also acknowledge that the hours of operation and for licensable activities, as applied for, fall 
well within the council’s core hours policy. 
 
For your information and assistance I attach a copy of the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy that I have referred to above. 
 
Further discussions will be held with the applicant prior to the hearing and any further 
submissions will be forwarded on for Members information. 
 
Please accept this as a formal representation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 191



 
 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy CIP1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises, 
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must demonstrate 
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas.  

 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies. 

 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they will not 
add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 
4. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance  
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 2751  
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 

page 192



 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Application Form  8th May 2018  

5 Representation – MET Police           23rd May 2018  

6 Representation – Environmental Health  5th June 2018  

7 Representation – Licensing Authority  4th June 2018  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 193



 
         Appendix 1 

Premises Plans 
 

 

page 194



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 
None submitted.  

page 195



        Appendix 3 
Premises History 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 

page 196



 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 197



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 198



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as driving licence, passport or proof of age card with PASS Logo.  

page 199



 
10. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed 

in outside areas between 23:00 and 08:00 hours on the following day.  
 
11. All waste shall be properly present and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection time.  
 
12. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
13. The premises shall maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The 
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities 
and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be 
stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the entire 31 day period.   

 
14. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or Authorised Council Officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
15. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where the alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  

 
16. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  

 
a. All crimes reported to the venue  
b. All ejections of patrons  
c. Any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
d. Any incidents of disorder  
e. All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
f. Any faults in the CCTV system  
g. Any refusal of alcohol  
h. Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service  

 
17. There shall be no self service of spirits on the premises save for spirit mixtures loss than 

5.5% ABV.  
18. No super strength beers, lagers, cider or spirit mixtures of 5.5% ABV or above shall be 

sold at the premises, save for premium brands.  
 
19. No fumes, steam or odours shall be emitted from the licensed premises so as to cause a 

nuisance to any persons living or carrying on business in the area where the premises 
are situated.  

 
Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority  
 
20. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 
 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 

page 200



(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable 
crockery, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and 
(vi)  where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 

persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such 
persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

 
Notwithstanding this condition, customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. Food and non-
intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all parts of the 
premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 

 
21. The number of persons seated in the premises at any one time shall not exceed xx 

persons excluding staff. 
 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
None Submitted.  
 
Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed with the applicant: 
 
22. The sale of alcohol shall be ancillary to the use of the premises as a high-end bakery 

and café.  
 
23. The number of persons seated in the premises at any one time shall not exceed 80 

persons, excluding staff. 
 
24. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons who 

are seated in the premises.  
 
25. Condition 9 of Annex A provided with the application shall be amended to read ‘There 

shall be no self-service of alcohol’. 

page 201



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

Premises within 75 metres of: Rose Bakery, 1821 Haymarket, London, SW1Y 4DQ 

page 202



p / n  Name of Premises Premises Address Licensed Hours 

17/07252/LIPDP
S 

VietCafe Ground Floor And 
Basement 23 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4DG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

17/05937/LIPV Steak And Co. Basement To First 
Floor 24 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4DG 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
01:00  
 
Sunday; 10:00 - 00:00  
 
Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
10:00 - 01:00 
 

16/00858/LIPDP
S 

Kanada-Ya 3 Panton Street 
London SW1Y 4DL 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 
 

06/09838/WCC
MAP 

Andalucia Tapas 
Restaurant 

Basement And 
Ground Floor Front 4 
Panton Street London 
SW1Y 4DL 
 

Monday to Sunday; 11:00 - 00:00 

17/03518/LIPDP
S 

Not Recorded 5 Panton Street 
London SW1Y 4DL 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

17/01054/LIPCH
T 

Yori Restaurant Basement And 
Ground Floor 6 
Panton Street London 
SW1Y 4DL 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

18/01081/LIPT Byron Basement And 
Ground Floor 11-12 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4BP 
 

Monday to Sunday; 00:00 - 00:00 

17/01417/LIPR
W 

Shawa Ground Floor Left St 
Albans House 57 - 60 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4QX 
 

Monday to Saturday; 11:00 - 
01:30  
 
Sunday; 11:00 - 00:30 

16/03554/LIPCH Planet Hollywood 
(UK) Ltd 

Ground Floor Right St 
Albans House 57-60 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4QX 
 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 - 
01:30  
 
Sunday; 09:00 - 00:30 

16/11713/LIPDP
S 

Z Hotel Grove House 2 
Orange Street London 
WC2H 7DF 

Monday to Sunday; 00:01 - 00:00 

16/01623/LIPVM The Harold Pinter 
Theatre 

Harold Pinter Theatre 
Panton Street London 
SW1Y 4DN 

Monday to Saturday; 09:00 - 
00:00  
 

page 203



Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

17/04297/LIPT Empire Cinemas 62 - 65 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4QX 
 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 03:00 

16/05290/LIPDP
S 

Prezzo Ltd Basement And 
Ground Floor Kings 
House 10 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4BP 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
23:30 
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 
 

18/03461/LIPDP
S 

Pizza Express Ground Floor Panton 
House 25 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4EN 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 

13/06530/LIPDP
S 

Spaghetti House Basement South And 
Ground Floor South 
Greener House 66-68 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4RF 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 

13/00183/LIPT Miso Noodle Bar Ground Floor East 
Greener House 66-68 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4RF 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:30 

16/07489/LIPDP
S 

Chop Shop Basement Nth And 
Ground Floor North 
Greener House 66-68 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4RF 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:00  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:30 

16/03273/LIPDP
S 

Spaghetti House Basement South And 
Ground Floor South 
Greener House 66-68 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4RF 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 

17/10721/LIPDP
S 

Spaghetti House Basement South And 
Ground Floor South 
Greener House 66-68 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4RF 
 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 

17/05308/LIPCH Assaggetti 69-71 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4RW 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
23:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 
 

17/02318/LIPDP
S 

Strada 39 Panton Street 
London SW1Y 4EA 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

page 204



14/00917/LIPDP
S 

Nonna's Kitchen Ground Floor 38 
Panton Street London 
SW1Y 4EA 

Monday to Thursday; 09:00 - 
00:00 
 
Friday to Saturday; 09:00 - 00:30 
Sunday; 09:00 - 23:00 

10/07825/LIPD Woodlands 
Restaurant 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 37 
Panton Street London 
SW1Y 4EA 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30  
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

15/00713/LIPDP
S 

Tom Cribb Public 
House 

36 Panton Street 
London SW1Y 4EA 

Monday to Thursday; 10:00 - 
00:00  
 
Friday to Saturday; 10:00 - 00:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 23:00 
 

16/02555/LIPN Anzu 1 - 3 Norris Street 
London SW1Y 4RJ 

Monday to Thursday; 11:00 - 
00:00 
 
Friday to Saturday; 11:00 - 00:30 
 
Sunday; 11:00 - 23:00 
 

18/01063/LIPT Veneta 1 - 3 Norris Street 
London SW1Y 4RJ 

Monday to Saturday; 07:00 - 
01:00 
 
Sunday; 07:00 - 23:30  
 
Sundays before Bank Holidays; 
07:00 - 00:00 
 

17/14765/LIPDP
S 

Ole   Steen Ground Floor Finland 
House 56 Haymarket 
London SW1Y 4RN 

Monday to Thursday; 06:30 - 
23:30 
 
Friday to Saturday; 06:30 - 00:00 
 
Sunday; 06:30 - 22:30 
 

15/04133/LIPCH Wagamama 8 Norris Street 
London SW1Y 4RJ 

Monday to Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 
 
Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 
 

06/08550/WCC
MAP 

Theatre Royal Theatre Royal 8 
Haymarket London 
SW1Y 4HT 

Monday to Friday; 09:00 - 04:00  
 
Saturday; 09:00 - 00:00  
 
Sunday; 14:00 - 00:00 
 

15/02331/LIPN The Borough 
Barista 

15 Charles II Street 
London SW1Y 4QU 

Monday to Thursday; 07:30 - 
23:30  
 
Friday; 07:30 - 00:00 
 
Saturday; 08:00 - 00:00  

page 205



 
Sunday; 08:00 - 22:30 
 

17/11215/LIPVM Odeon Cinema 11-18 Panton Street 
London SW1Y 4DP 
 

Monday to Sunday; 09:00 - 08:00 

 

page 206


	Agenda
	2 Co-operative, Baker Street,  London, NW1 5RT
	3 26 Southampton Street, London, WC2E 7JA
	4 Café Fiori, 42 Cranbourn Street, London, WC2H 7JH
	5 Woods Quay, Savoy Pier, Victoria Embankment, London, SW1A 2HR
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

	6 Rules Restaurant, 34-35 Maiden Lane, London, WC2E 7LB
	Licensing Sub-Committee Report
	Licence & Appeal History
	CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

	Current basement and ground plans.pdf
	RR/PL/03
	Viewport-4


	Current first and second floor plans.pdf
	RR/PL/04
	Viewport-1



	7 Rose Bakery, 18 - 21 Haymarket, London, SW1Y 4DQ

